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May 15,2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into a RETROACTIVE
amendment to an existing SOLE SOURCE contract with Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
(VC#! 77198), Manchester, NH, for the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program, by
extending the completion date from March 31,2024 to June 30,2024, changing the amount of the
program from $1,375,947 to $806,433.94, and changing the scope to authorize onetime supplemental
payments of $742 to eligible customers that applied for the program by March 31,2024 totaling
$459,298 within the updated price limitation of $806,433.94, effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on September 21,2022, Item
#63, and amended on September 20,2023, Item #5D. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts:

Fiscal

Year

Account/Class Class Title Current

Budget
Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 02-52-52-520010-

24520000-074-500587

Grants for Pub

Assist & Relief

$605,887.00 ($525,013.97) $80,873.03

2023 02-52-52-520010-

19880000-074-500587

Grants for Pub

Assist & Relief

$770,060.00 ($503,797.09) $266,262.91

2024 02-52-52-520010-

24520000-074-500587

Grants for Pub

Assist & Relief

$0.00 $317,774.64 $317,774.64

2024 02-52-52-520010-

19880000-074-500587

Grants for Pub

Assist & Relief

$0.00 $141,523.36 $141,523.36

Total $1,375,947.00 ($569,513.06) $806,433.94



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Ma>-15,2024
Page 2 of2

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action
Agencies (CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program
(LIHEAP), their outreach and client service capabilities, the synergies that will benefit the Low
Income Home Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) as a result of the five statewide CAAs'
implementations of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure that is
already in place to deliver LIHWAP services. The Department proposes to continue to
subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided similar services at the local
level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with the Department's Fuel
Assistance Program Administrator in the implementation of several low-income programs.

LIHWAP is a statewide program, funded by Federal LIHEAP grants, to provide residential water
and sewer arrearage payment services for those making 60% or less of state median income.
Program funds will provide arrearage payoffs to low-income households..

The US DHHS recently afforded states the opportunity to extend this program for an additional
six months. The Department recently sought and received approval for this extension. The
program ended on March 31, 2024, the Department is reallocating remaining funds based on
number of households to provide a one-time credit to all households that are eligible and applied
for the program by March 31".

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully^bmitted,

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: LOW - INCOME WATER ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC.

AMENDMENT #2

This Amendment dated April /7 . 2024, is between the State of New Hampshire
Department of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Concord, Merrimack County, NH 03301
(hereinafter referred to as the "State") and Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc., 40 Pine
Street, PO Box 5040, Manchester, Hillsborough County, NH 03108 (hereinafter referred to as the
"Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 21, 2022, Item #63, and amended on September 20, 2023,
Item #5D, the Contractor has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions
specified in the Agreement and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as
specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Governor and Council; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1 ■ Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of March 31, 2024 and inserting in place
thereof the date of June 30, 2024.

B) Price Limitation:. Amend Subparagraph 1.8 of the Agreement by striking
the current Price Limitation of Si,375,947 and inserting in place thereof
$806,433.94

C) Exhibit C - Payment Terms:

I. Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking the current contract
date of "upon Governor and Council approval through March 31,

SNHS Amendment Contractor Initials: /
Grants: LIHWAP2I0INHLWC5/6 Date: H'fJ'
CFDA; 93.568 Pajc I 6f3



2024" and inserting in place thereof "upon Governor and Council
approval through June 30, 2024."

2. Amend line one under American Rescue Plan Act by striking
$90,367.00 and insert in place thereof $36,398.03.

3. Amend line two under American Rescue Plan Act by striking
$515,520.00 and insert in place thereof $362,249.64.

4. Add third line under American Rescue Plan Act to read "Of the

$362,249.64, $317,774.64 shall be used to provide a $742
supplemental payment to water/sewer vendors to be applied toward
eligible customers* current bill, with any remaining funds to be
applied as a credit.

5. Amend line one under Consolidated Appropriations Act by striking
$112,256.00 and insert in place thereofil 19,253.97.

6. Amend line two under Consolidated Appropriations Act by striking
$657,804.00 and insert in place thereof $288,532.30.

7. Add third line under Consolidated Appropriations Act to read "Of
the $288,532.30, $141,523.36 shall be used to provide a $742
supplemental payment to water/sewer vendors to be applied toward
eligible customers* current bill, with any remaining funds to be
applied as a credit. The total amount of the supplemental payments
equals $459,298.00.

D) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to ̂ 'upon Governor
aiKl Council approval through June. 30,2024.*'

E) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to **upon Governor and Council
approval through June 30, 2024 "

F) Exhibit B - Scope of Services: Amend Exhibit B to include paragraph 4.
Supplemental payments directly to water/sewer vendors to be applied
towards eligible customers* current bill, with any remaining fiinds to be
applied as credit to assist with rate reduction.

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the
Terms and Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder
shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions

set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREGF, the partiw have hereunto set their hands as of the day and year first
above written.

STATE GF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Department of Energy

SNHS Amendntent Contractor Initials:

Grants: UHWAP210INHLWCS/6 Date:

CFDA: 93.568 ' l^age



By:

By:

Tared S. Chicoine, Commissioner

SoiKhem New Hampshire Services, [no.

nnalee Lozeau, ̂ief Executive Officer)

State of New Hampshire
County of Hillsborough

On this 17*** day of April, 2024, before me, Debra Stohrer. the undersigned officer, personally
appeared Donnalee Lozeau, who acknowledged himself^erself to be the Chief Executive Officer
of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc., a corporation, and that he/she, being authorized so to
do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission expires:

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

By:

Date:

Assistant Attorney General

4/18/2024

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2024.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

SNHS Amendment Contractor Initials: t
Grants: LIHWAP2I0INHLWC5/6 Date:

CFDA: 93.568



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Orville Korr . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corpofailon/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. ^
(CofporatioiyLLC Name)

2. The foDowing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on December 11 . 2023 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Donnalee Lozeau. CEO. Rvan Clouthier. COO: James Chalsson. CFO. and Cara Allbertl.
Financial Analvst (may list more than one person )is duly authorized on behalf of Southern New Hampshire
Sftrvlces. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements wth the State of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, ar>d
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certiftcate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To^the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in conti^^ie^th the..Stat9 of New Hampshire,
all such timitatlons are expressly stated herein.

Dated:.
Sigh^tufe of Elected Officer
Name: Orville Kerr

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Scanlan. S«retai> of S(aie of the Slate of New Hompshire. do hereby certify ihai SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact busirtess in New Hampshire on May 28,1965.

I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ©nice have been received and is in good standing
as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65506

Certificate Number: 0006652089
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Scactary of State



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MHnXMYYYY)

03/25/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTTTUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER{S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tha cartiflcata holdar is an ADOmONAL INSURED, the policy(iof) must hava ADDITIONAL INSURED provltiona or ba endortad.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjact to tha tarma and condltJona of tha policy, cartain pellclaa may raquira an andcraamant A atalamant on
this cartiflcata doaa not confar rlghta to tha cartiflcata holdar In liau of auch af>deraamant(a).

aROOucea

Croas insuranca'Manchaatar

1100 Elm Siraai

Manchastar NH 03101

Dunna Soto

(603)669-3218 (903)645-4331

manch.cartsQicrossagancy.com

atsimeats) ArroAOiNO covcraoe NAICt

INSURSR a: Phliadalphia Irtdamnity int Co 18058

muaeo

Souiham Naw Hampshira Serwcaa. inc.

PO Box 5040

Manchesier NH 03108-5040

iNSUACR a; Midwast Employafs Casualty Corp . 23812

iNauACRC:

WSUftERO:

MaUkER E:

pauRER f;

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-2S SNKS REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE IN5URD3 NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INOICATEO, NOTVMTHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 0ESCRI8E0 HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POUCIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HA\^ BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IHSR
LTR TYRE or MSUfUNCa rnim POLICY NUM8ER

w  tiji
LIMITS 1

A

X COMHERCULOaNERAL UABUJTY

c (3 ocevR

PHPK2670953 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE , 1.000.000

1 ClAWSAUO UAMAUtilUHbNIbb j 100.000

MEO exP lAm ena oarwn) , 5.000

PERSONAL t AOV INJURY , 1.000.000

QENLAGOREOATe LiMffAPPUES PCB. GENERAL ACCREGATE , 2.000.000

L rooct 1 1 5^ 1 x| LOC
OTHER

PROOUCTS-COMROPAGO , 2.000.000

□

A

lAUTOMOeU LiAttUTY

PHPK2670952 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

t

COUeiNEO SINGLE UMIT
iFa accMMnn S 1.000,000

X ANY AUTO

HEOULEO
TOS
W-OWNEO
TOS ONLY

80OILY INJURY (Pat pataon) a

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY 1
HIREO 1
AUTOS ONLY 1

sc
AU

eOOlLY INJURY (Pat aeodNN) s

—

NC
AU

PROPERTY Damage
iParaeadanii t

1  1 s

A

X UMDAELLALiAfi

Excess UAB

X OCCUR

CLAWS'MAOe PHU890S8S9 04A}1/2024 04/01/2025
EACH OCCURRENCE , 5.000.000

AGGREGATE , 5.000.000
DEC RETENTION $ 10.000 1 s

B

WORKERS COMreNSATION
AND EMFIOTERS'UAttUTt

AKYPR0rRl6T0R/P"lRTNER<EAECOTIVE
OrrCERMEMBCR EXCLUOEO? **
(Mandatary b »<) ' '
If MS

OCSOtlPTON or 0RCRAT10NS MOM

NfA HCHS20240000534 (3a - NH) 01/01/2024 01/01/2025

Vl P8k 1 OTH-STATUTE IeR

E L. EaChaCOOEnT , t.ooo.ooo

E L. DISEASE • Ea employee , 1.000,000

E L DISEASE • POiXY LUarr 1.000,000

A
Profeaaional Llabllily

PHPK2e70953 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

Each Prof inddani

Aggragata

31.000.000

32.000.000

DCSCWFTION or OaCRATIONa (LOCATIOKa / VeWCLea (ACORO iei. A«dmenal RuwrM a«hMiuta. may b« aOacM ■ mofa apaea b ra«4/*d]

Rafar to policy for exclusionary andoraamanta and special provltions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Oapartmant of Energy
21 South Fruit Straai

CotKord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOmZEO RePRCSENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
C 198$-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rlshtt r»««iv«d.

Tht ACORD nam* and logo ara ragiatarad marks of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE SEP05'23 PM 1=59 RCO

rod'Aixess: R^y'NTDb'Ai^RdayNHJarodS.ChksoIno pT p-s,^ 1-0OO-73M9M

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER Td. (603) 271-:^
CWstophefJ.Elirn8.Jr FAXNp.27i;iS26

Vyeh^'
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY wy<w.e^jih.^.

21 S. Fruit SL, Suits 10
Ck>noord. N.H. 03301-2429

Sq)tcmba 20,2023

His Excellency, GoveniorChiistopherT. Summu
and the Honorable Council

State House

CoQCOTd, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Energy (Department) to enter into an amfjwiTrx^t to an existing
SOLE SOURCE contract with Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (VC#177198). Manchester, NH^ for
the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program, by extending the completion date from September 30,
2023 to March 31,2024, efifective iq)on Governor and Executive CoundJ af^noval. No additioiial funding is
involved with this contract.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Executive Council on Sqjtembo- 21,2022, Item #63.
100% Federal Funds

EXPLANATION

This contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical perfonnance of the Community Action Agencies
(CAA) in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (UHEAP), their outreach
and client service capabilities, the synergies that will benefit the Low Income Home Water Assistance
Program (UHWAP) as a result of the five statewide CAAs' implementations of several other federal
assistance programs, and the infoastructure that is already in pla^ to deliver UHWAP services. The
D^iartment proposes to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have successfully provided
similar services at the local level for more than three decades. The CAAs work closely with foe
Department's Fuel Assistance Program Administrator in foe implementation of several low-income
programs.

LIHWAP is a statewide program, fimdod by Federal LIHEAP grants, to provide residential water and
sewer arrearage payment services for those making 60% or less of state median income. Pmgram funds
will provide arrearage payoffs to low-income households.

The US DHHS recently afforded states the opportunity to extend this program for an additional six
months. The Dqjaitmoit recently sought and received approval for this extension. No additional funds
were made available. No funds will be obligated under this contract unless federal monies are available to
be expended.

In foe event that foe Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be requested to
support this program.

C&C9/2Crt023



In the event that the Federa] Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

s.

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner

Page 2 of2 G&C9/2(V2023



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

SUBJECT: FUEL ASSISTANCE CONTRACT

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated August 21, 2023, is between the State of New Hampshire
Department of Energy, 21 South Fruit Street, Coneord, Mcrrimack County, NH 03301
(hereinafter referred to as the "State") and Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.^ 40 Pine
Street, P.O. Box 5040, Manchester, Hillsborough County, NH 03108 (hereinafter referred to as
the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as approved by
Governor and Council on September 21, 2022 (Item ̂ 63), the Contractor has agreed to provide
certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in consideration of
payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS," pursuant tothe pYoyi.sipns of Section 17 of the Agreement, the Agreement
may be modified or amended only by a written instrument executed by the parties thereto and
only after approval of such modification or amendment by the Govemor and Council; and

WHEREAS, The State and the Contractor have agreed to amend the Agreement in certain
respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and
conditions in the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

I. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and
modified as follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend Subparagraph 1.7 of the Agreement by striking
the current completion date of September 30, 2023 and inserting in place
thereof the date of March 31, 2024.

B) Exhibit C - Payment Terms: Amend Exhibit C, third paragraph by striking
the current contract date of "upon Govemor and Council approval through
September 30, 2023" and inserting in place thereof "upon Govemor and
Council approval through March 31, 2024."

C) Exhibit D: Amend period covered by this certification to "upon Govemor
and Council approval through March 31, 2024."

D) Exhibit E: Amend contract period dates to "upon Govemor and Council
approval through March 31,2024."

SNHS Amendment Contrecior Inilials:
.' Grahu: LIHWAP2IOiNHLWC5/6 Dale:
CFDA; ̂3.M8



CONTRACT AMENDME?^
Nil DEPT. OF ENERGY

Continuance of AgrMment. Except ^pprifiraiiy modified by
ihc Terms and Conditions of this Amcndmeni, obligations of the panics hereunder
shall remain in full force and cffcci in accordance with the terms and conditions
set forth in the Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

"IN WITNESS WHEREOrrihc parties h"avT hereunto set their'handsai^f ihTtlaTind year first*
above written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
NH Department of Enei

Chicoinc, Commissioner

Sout/cm New Hampshire Services, Inc.

nnalee Lozeau f Executi ve Officer

Slate of New Hampshire

County of Hillsborouuh

On this .day of. 2023, before mc, Oebra Stchrer 1}^^
undersigned officer, personally appeared who acknowledged
himsclf/hcrscIf to be the _Ch«t Exac.iW Ofr>c«r of Southern New Hamnshire Servir^. |n^
a corporation, and thai he/she, being authorized so to do. executed the foregoing instrument for
the purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission expires;

Ai^roved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

By:

Date:

Assistant Attorney General

9/1/2023

SNHS Amcndmcrn
Gnnu: I.IHWAP 2lOl NHI.WCS''6
CFDA: 93.3M

Contrector (niiitls;

Dale:

PaaaZcri



CONTRACT AMENDMEhTT

NH DEPT. OF ENERGY

I hereby certify thai the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the
State of New Hampshire at their meeting on SEP 2 0 2023 '

OFFICE/Sp^ftR^WGRI^RY OF STATE

By: .

SECRETARY OF STATE

SNHS Amendmeni Conincior Iniiiels:

Crams; L(HWAP2101NHLWCS/6 Dale:

CFDA: 93.568
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. David M. Sconlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965.

I further ccnily that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65506

Certificate Number: 0006209491
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IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afftxcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 18th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1 . Orville Kerr ■ hereby certify that:
(Name of Ihe elccied OfHcer of the Corporaiion/LLC; cannoi be coiHract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected ClerK/Secfetary/Otficer of Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
(Cofporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on October 25 , 2022 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Donnalee Lozeau (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Southern New Hampshire Services to enter into contracts or agreemenls'wilh the
State
of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of Ihe
dale of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificale Is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that tl is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed above currently occupy Ihe (wsliion(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the Stale of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated.he^^^

Dated: ̂
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Orville Kerr

Title: SNHS Board Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



ACO/fCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATS (MieoomrYY)

03/31/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If th« certlflcsto holdar Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, tha |>ollcy(lcs) must hava ADDITIONAL INSURED.provlslons or ha andorsod.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, sublet to tha tarms and conditions of tha policy, cariain policlas may raquira an andorsamanL A statamant on
this cartHlcata does not confer rights to tha cartlflcata holdar in lieu of such endorsamant(s).

pRooucea

FIAVCrou Insurance

1100 Bm Street

Manchester NH 03101

DlannaSoto

an^P.,v (603)669-3218 [« ,,, (603)645-4331
A0M£S9' 'nai^-c^^taOcrossagertcy.com

MSUREWS) AFFOROWO COVCAAOC NAIC •

INSURER A Philadelphia indemnity ins Co 18058

rKSURSD

Soulham NH Servlcas inc.

P.O. Box SO40

Manchaster NH 03108

INSURER 0 Midwest Employers Casualty Cotp 23612

INSURER C

INSURER fi

INSURER e

INSURER r

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 23-24 AH Ines SNHS REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE USTEO BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

(MSA
TYPC OF INSURANCE IItm'HvA'I POUCY NUMBER UIOTS 1

A

X COMMERCIAL OEjKERAL LUBIUTY

e (3 OCCUR

PHPK2535524 04/01/2023 04/01/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
j 1.000.000

1 ClamSamO OAULGETUHbHTED , 100.000

MEO EXP (Any cn« M«WA) , 5.000

PERSONAL A Amr iN/uRr , 1.000.000

OEKL AOOREOATELlMn- APFuES PER; oeneralagcreqate
, 2.000.000

X '^'C'^UjScT 1 )loc
OT>«R:

PRODUCTS • COmP/OP ago , 2.000.000

$

A

AUTOMOqa.e UAOtLITV 1

PHPK2535522 04/01/2023 04/01/2024

COAOINEO single limit
lU FCCKMN)

S 1.000.000

X anyAuto

HEOULEO
rrOS
W^JWNED
riOSONlY

BOOCY INJURY (Pw owten) s

—

OwnEO
AUTOS ONLY
HIREO
AUTOS OM.Y

sc
AL

BOORY INJURY (P«r WdMnl) s

NC
AL

pAO^r/&ama6£
(Pr aeuppm t

s

A

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UA8

X OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE PHU8857270 04/01/2023- 04A)1/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 5.000.000

AGGREGATE , 5.000.0CC

OEO 1 X| RETENTION t | s

B

|VR>RKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS-UAfllUTY v,m
,ANTPROP«ETOIVPARTNeR««CUTIVE
lOFFICERACMBER EXCLUOeO?
'(MMtaMOrylnNH) '

If *n. daaoiBt iPtMr
OESC/ttPDON OF OPERATIONS MMw

NfA HCHS20230000534 (3a.) NH 01/01/2023 01/01/2024

X STATUTE 1 TI^R^
Ei-EACHACCtOENT

, 1.000.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMn.OYEE. J 1.000.000

EJ.. OtSEASE • POUCY LIMT , 1.000.000

A
Professional Liability

PHPK2535524 04/01/2023 04A)1/2024

LIit9{

Aggregate

$1,000,000

S 2.000.000

OeSCRIRTKM OF OPERATIONS/LOCATlONSr VCHlCLeS (ACORD 101. AMIIIeMi Rtmirtt ScnvevH. m«y e*(iwclkMH mer* tRM*MrwidrM)

Refer to poUcy for exclusionary endorsements and spedaJ provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of £nergy

21 South Fruit Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRtBEO POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE OELIVEREO IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORiaO REPRESEfaATIve

ACORD 25(2016/03)

e 1088-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights r*s«rv«d.

Ths ACORD nsnw and logo ara raglstersd marts of ACORD



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE SEP07'22 AM 9:39 RCUD

COMMISSIONER

Jsred S. Chlcolne

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER
Christopher J. Ellrm, Jr.

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

21 S. Fruit St.. Suite 10

Concord. N.H. 03301-2429

TDD Access: Re
1-000-7^2^

let. (603) 271-3670

FAX NO. 271-1526

WeOslie:

wiMW.erierBy.nh.gov

»4\

63
September 6, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Suminu
and the Hononibic Council

Siftic House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

RKOUFSTF.I) ACTION

I) Authorize the New Hampshire Dcpanment of Energy (NH DOE) to enter into a SOLE SOURCE contract with
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc., (VC 177198), Manchester, NH, in the amount of $1,375,947.00 for the
Low-liicomc Household Water Assistance Program (LIHWAP) effective upon Governor and Executive Council
approvol through September 30, 2023. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request ore anticipated to be available in the following occouni in FY 2023 upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget.

NH Department of Energy Water Assistance Prouram

2.52-52-520010-24520000

074*500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

2-52-52-520010-19880000

074-500587 Grants for Pub Assist & Relief

Tolnl;

FY2Q23

$605,887.00

$770,060.00

$1375.947.00

2) Further request authorization to advance Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. $550,379.00 from the
above-referenced contract anriounl.

EXPLANATION

Tliis contract is SOLE SOURCE based on the historical performance of the Community Action Agencies (CAA)
in the New Hampshire Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), their outreach and client
service cnpabiliiics, the synergies that will bcncHt the LIHWAP as a result of the five statewide CAAs'
implementations of several other federal assistance programs, and the infrastructure (hat is already in place to
deliver LIHWAP services. NH IX)E proposes to continue to subcontract with the five CAAs who have
successfully provided similar services at the local level for more than three decades. 'ITie CAAs work closely
with the NH DOE Fuel Assistance Program Administrator in the implementation of several Idw-incomc
programs.



Hw ll^ccllcncy.-povcniur Chrut(»phcr 'IV Sununu
anil the.Hoflorsblc Council

l*p|*c 2 of 2

LI HWAP-is a statewldie program, funded by Federal LINEAR grants, ttf provide residential water/sewer arrearage
payment services for NH Fuel Assistance Program enrolled 5imilies, including those who are elderlyor disabled.
Program funds will provide arrearage payoffs to tow>income households.

This LIHWAP-program will be operating on a,September 21.2022 to September 30,2023 prpgram.year. No
funds will .be obligated under Oils coritract unless federal monies are available to be expended. The p'fopoxd
edvahce.-oLfunds wilj enable the CAAs to operate the prograrn between morilhly reimbursements from the Staite.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no. longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support
this program.

tespectfull^ubrhitted.

Jared Chicoine

Commissioner

G&C 09/21/2022
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FORM NUMBER p.37 (venton 12/11/2019)

MflliEfi: piii BgrecM and til,of tu ituchments ihtll become puUic upon nibmiitim to Govmno^ tod
Exe^ve Couaeil for ipprovtl Any infonaaiiQo thet it pHvite, confldentlaJ or pf^frietaiy
be cletriy Btentified to ̂  eeeocy end lareed lo in wriUna prior to liamna the contnw.

AGREEMENT
The Sute of Now Herapiibire and Ihe Comnietot beieby mutually agree at fbllowa:

general PROVISIONS
IPENTIPtCATlON.

I.I StateAgeacyName

New Hampahae Deptitmew of Energy

1.3 Coatractor Name
Soutltem New Hampshire Services, Inc.

1.5 Coatractor Phone

Number

(603) 668-8010

1.6 Acoouat Nureber

03-S2-S2'520l0-19880000-
500587 and 02.52.32-32010-
24520000-500587

1.9 Comncling OfTicer for State Ageacy
Eileen Stniglowakl, Fuel Aailstance Program Admioistntor

1^1 ComraetorSi ture

Date1
Stale AgeacySj tiue

1.15 Approval

By;

1.2 Stale Agency Addrea ^
21 So. Fiuii St., Ste. 10
Concord, New Hampchire 03301

1.4 Contractor Addrea

40 Pine Strea Maneheiler. NH

1.7 Cofflpletien Date
September 30.2023

1.6 Price Limitation

Sl.375.947.00

10 Stale Agency Telephone Number
(603)271-8317

1.12 Name end Title ofContractor Signatory
Doonake Loceau, Chief Executive Officer

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Slgnato^
Chrutophcr Elinu, DejxUy Connnissloner

lOeparuneni of Adnunatratwn. OtvisioD of Pcfwatu^ (\Sn^\krtb\t}

Director, On:

1.16 Appn^ the AM^Oeoeral (Form, Subauaca and Exeeuiiori) (ifapplicabfe)

On. September 2,2022

1.17 Approvd by the OoveriuwandEx^Tive Council (\fapplka^'

L...
O&C licnmunber OAC Meeting Date: SfP 2 I 2022

Page I of 5

Contractor Initials k.,
D.te irate
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Siete of New

Hempahirr. eciingihrdugh thie agency i<teniijfied in block I.I
("Stitc-")., .engages c.onwclpr identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to, perfonn, and the Comracicr shall perfonrn, the
woft or sale orgoo^. or both, ideniified.and more particulorly
d'escrib^ in .(he attached. EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services'*).

3. EFFECTIVE PATE/COMPEETION OF .SERVICES.
3.1 hlotwithstandirig any' pr6visi6.n bf ihia Agreement to the
cbnirsry, and. subject to the 'approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of,New Hampshire, irappllcablc,
this Agreemeril, and all obligations of(he pah'les hercunder, shall
become. efTecUve on the date, the Governor and Executive

Council approve this A'gieemem as indicated in block 1.17.
unless'no such approval.U.requiied. in which case the Agreement
shall become'effeccive'on ihe.dale (he Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as.shown.in block 1.13 ("Effective Date"). .
3.2 If. the Contractor ̂ corrunenqu' the Sc^ices'prior to the'
EfTeciive Date, all Screes performed by (he CohtrMtqr prior to-
(he ^fTecliye Date shall be peKorm^ at the Mle risk, of the
Contrector..aM:in the eyent that (his Agreement does not become
eiteciive, the State shall have no liability to the Contncior,
including without -limiiation, any obligation (c pay the
Contractor for arty costs incurr^ or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Sitvices.by the Co'rnpleiipn Date
specified, ittlblock 1.7.

4. CONpltiONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Noiwithstaniding aAy provision .of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligilior(s of the State hereunder, including.
witl^l.limita'lion,-the continuance of payments hereunder, are
conlirigent upon.the.availabiliiy and^cohiitiued.appropriatioh of
fv.nds affected b'y any 'state- or fcd.e.ral .legislative or'executive
action that r^iices: el.i.rninatcs' or otherwise modifies the
.apprc^riatmn^or.ayailabiliiy of funding for Ih'is'Agreement and
the Scope fbr Servicos provided in EXHIBIT B.'in whole or. in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hefeundertn excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or term'.inalicin of appropriated iur^.s, the
Stale shall have tin,righrto withhold payme'itt until such funds
b^me ayailabie, if ever, ahd shall have'the right to reduce or
(erminate (he Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving' the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall-not be retiuired to transfer funds from any other
Bccpuni or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the
event furnls in'iha'i'Acc.ount.ar'c rcduc^ or unavailable.

1

5. CONTRACT PRICE/FRICE LIMITATION/

.PAYMENT-'
5.1 The contract price, method oTpayment, arvl terms of payment
are identified and more parilculariy described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by'rafereiKe. .

Page

3.2 The payment by (he. State of ihe'.contract price''.shall be the*
only and the complete reimburument to the Contractor for alt
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
pcrformarKc hereof, and shall be ithe only and complete-
compensation to the Contractor for the Services: Thc:Siate ahatl
have no liability to the Contrector'^othe'r than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves .(he right to bflxi from ariy amounts
otherwise payable to the Conirector under (Kis-AgreemenMhoiM
liquidated amounts- required or permitted by N.H. RSA '80:7
through RSA 80:7>c or any other provision of law.

-  5.4 Notwithstanding any provision 'in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding urtexpecied ctrc.umstahces', in no
event shall the total of all p'aymenti authdrixe.d, or ac tually'made
hereunder. exceed.ihe Price Limitation set forth in;biock L8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTdR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/EQUAL.employment
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In coryieciion with (he performance of the Services, the
Contractor ithall comply with all -applicable statutes, ilaws,
regulations, and ortlers of federal, stale, county :or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or ditty, upon the
Contractor, including, but not lirriited to; civil rights and equal '
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is.
funded in any part by moni'N of (he United Stistes,.(he..Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, ru.tu, regulations
end statutes, end with any rules, regulations and guidelines as'the
Stale or the United States issue to implement-theK regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with 8ll;applicable inletleclual
property laws.
6.2.During the term 'of (his Agreemem..the'Qbriira'ciqr shall not
discriminate against employees' c.r applicants for employment;
beausc of race, color, .religion, creed, age. sex. ifiiindicap,.sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimihetion.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State^or .United-States
access to any of the Contractor's.books, records end accounts for.
the purpose.of ascenaining compliance .wiihjBn ryi»| regulations'
end 'orders, and. the covenants, tirims and conditions of this.
Agreement. '

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 .The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services.The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified ip
perform the Seivices' and shalj -be 'properly licensed and'
otherwise authoritcd to do so under ill applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorised in writing, during the term of
-this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months, af^er (he.
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contracior.shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor-or other'(krson, .firm 'or
cor^raiion wiih v^om it is engaged in -a combined 'cITort to
perform the Services to hire, any per^n who i.s a Sute employee
or official, who is materiilly involved In the procurement.
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•dministraiipn or ^rfwmancc .of ihis" Agfcerncm. This
provision shall surv'iyc tcrniinaijoh pfihis Agrecmeni.
7;3.Thc Contracung Officer specified in.blpcl(.|.9, or his or her
succeuor, shali be ihe Stale 's represenuii^. In the cveni of any
dispute conceding ihe interpretation .of ihis Agreenieni. the
Contracting Officer.'s decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.J Any one or.niore q^f.lhe following acts or omissions of the
Contrector shall constitute en event of default hereunder ("Event
of-Default"):
8.1.1. failure to perfoirh the Services, satisfactorily or on
uh'edule;
8.1.2 failure to stibmi.l any report required hereunder, and/or
8,. 1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condiiion of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of.eny Eveni of Default; the State may
lake any one, or mdi'e, or all. of the follotying Ktiohs;
8.2.1 give (he'Cohlracldr'a wntien nolice sp^ifyihg Ihe Eveni of
Defauli.and.requiririg it (o'te remedied within, in ihe absence of
0 greaier'or tj^r specifipation of time, thiriy(30) days from ihe
.daleqfthe notice; and if the Event of.Dcfaull ts noi.timely cured,
termit«tc this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termiha.iidh;'
8.2.2-glve ihe Coniractor a wnitw notice specilying the Event of
Default ;and susp'jmding aii paynwhis to made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which wculd'-otherwlse accrue to ihe Cohtracior during ihe^
period from ihe dale of such notice until such lime as the Stale
.determines that the'Contractor has cured, the Event of Default
shall never.be paid to the'Coniractor;
8.2.'3 give the Conirec'tbr a wriilm hbtke specifying the Event of
Default and set. ojT against any .other'.obligations the State may
o.w% to the Cdnuoctor any damages the.'Siaie suffers by reason of
any E.vcni of Ckfaijit; end/or
6:2.4.give the Contractor .a written notice specifying the Event of
DefauU, treat the Agreement as breached, lefminaie the
Agreemeht.ahd.punue any of iia remedies at l.aw or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failum.by the Siaie.to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event.of Default shall be.deemed a waiver of its righu with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure lb enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed.a waiver of the right of the .State to enforce each and
aU;bf the provisions hereof.upoh any further or other Event of
Default on the part.of the Contractor

9. TERMINATION.

9:.t Noj.withstanding paragraph 8. the State may, at its sole
discretion, lenninaie Ihe Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the.Staie is exercising its option to t'ermihete the Agreerhent.

Page.

9.2' In Ihe 'eyem.of 'an.early termihaiion of this Agreement for
any reason other than the 'completion of -the Services. |he
Comractor shall, at the Stele's discrction, deliver to the
Coniraciing Officer, not later than fifteen (IS)days.aftef ihe date
of lerminaiiort, a report ("Terminalion Report").d^nbing' in
detail all'Services performed, and th'e.contra.ci price'earned, to
and including the date of lerminaiio.h. -The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of ihe Terminalion Report.shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described in dw aiiaehed
EXHI BIT B.'ln addition, at the Slate's discretion, ihe Contractor
shall, within IS days'of notice of early termination, develop and
submit to ihe State a Transition Plan for seivices'''under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall meatt all
informitidn and things developed or obtained during the'
pe.rformahcc'&f, of acquire.d or developed.by reason o.^ lhis
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all .eiudies^ repons.
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts,-sound r.ecofdlngs,..yideo
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, grapHk
representations, computer programs, cotnputer'pfiqibuts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all wh'elhe.r
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data and any property which has been.received, from
the State or purcharcd with funds^provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shali be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to (he State upon demand or upon,termination
of this Agreement for. any reason.
10.3 Confidentiality of .data shall be goverhed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9 l-A or other existing law. Disclcs.urc. of data requires
prior wriuen approval of the State:

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. .In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independeni contractor, and is neither' an agent nor an.
employee of (he. State. Neither'iKe. Cohtracior nbr a'ny'or Its
officers, employees, agents or mcmbers'shall Ha've.auihorliy to
bind the State or receive any benefits,.workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Stele, to its employees.

n. ASSICNMENTfDELECATIONySUBCONTRACTS.
12.1 The Contractor shall noi assign, or otherwise transfer-any
interest In this Agreement withwi.ihe prior written noiicc, which
shall be provided lo the State at least fifteen (IS) days prior to
the usignment, arid a written conse.nl of the Stale. For purpOMS
of (his paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. ."CThange of Control" means (a) merger,,
consolidation, or a transaction or scriies of-relaled transactions in.
which a third party, together with, its aftiliai'es; becomes (he
direct or indirect owner of fifty pcreehi (50%) or hwre ©r.lhe
voting shares or simil.ar equity intere.sis, of combined 'voting
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power of (h'e/Contnc(or, or (i»);the sale of all or aiibsianttally eU
of ilw asseisofthe.boniractor.
12.2' None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without:prior written notice and consent.of the State.
The Staic'U.ehtjiled.to Mpidi bf;all subcdq'iracu and a-ssignment
agrcemcnis and shall not be'.bpund by any proyisioris contained
in a lubconiraci pr ah assignment agreerneni to which it Is not, a
party,

13. INOeMNlFICATlON. Unlc.«oihcrwL« exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify enid hold harnit^ the State, its
ofTicers and employee's,- from 'and against any arid, all claims,.
liabnilies and costs' for any personal inju^ or property damages,
paient-or copyright ihrringemem, orotha claims asserted against
the State, its ofTicers or employes, which arise.out of (or which
may be claimed to orise out oO the acts .or omissipri of the
Contractor, or subcontractors; including but twi limited to. the
negljgcncci recklejss or ihterittonal cortduct. The State.shall not
be liable, for atiy costs Incurred.by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13'. Notwithstanding the foregoing, rrathing herein
contained sKall.be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity, of the State, which Immunity is hereby.rcscrved to the
State. This coymht In 'paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Ag'rttmehl.

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 the Corttraclor shall, el its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force,- and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain end maintain in force, the
following iruurance:
I4.'l:l cbrnm'crcial general liability.iKsurance,against all .claims
of bodily injury, death.or property da.mage, in amounts of not
less than Sl.OM.OOO per occurrence and S2,000.000 aggregate
or,excess;.4nd

14.1.2 ipecial.cause ofloss .coverage form covering all properly
subjKt.to subparagraph'10.2 herein, in an amount not less'than
80% of the whole replacement value of the pipperty.
14.2 The policies'described .in'subparagr'aph'14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms ar>d.endpniements eprprove.d fpr'ijse in the State
oFNew Hampshire'by the N.H. DepanmPnt 'of Insurance, and
issucti by iiiMrers licensed in.thc Stale ofNcw'Hampshire.
14.'3 The ̂Contractor shall .furnish t.o the Contracting OfTicer
identified in blopk 1.9, or his.or her successor, a ccrtificaiefs) of
insurance for .all i.nsurance required under this ■Agrmm'ent.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Orncer'.identified
in block 1.9,-of his or ^r;succcssor, cenificate(s) of insurance
for all renewal(s) of insurance required ur)der this Agreement no
later than'ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certificaiefs) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

IS.I By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies,
and warrants that the .Contractor is in compliarice with.orMcmpt
from; the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter-28.I-A ("Workers'
Compensaiion ").
1.5.2 To the extent (he Contractor is subject tp ihe r^ui(:ement.<t
of N.H. RSA chapter 2*8I*A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subconirBctor.or assignee io secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation :in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement, The Contractor shall funilshihe.Cdritrecilng'Pfncer
idehtinj^ in block t.9, or his.or her successor, proofofWoHccTa'
Compeniaiion in the manner described in N;H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable. rencwal{s) thereof, which shall'be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The State,
shall not be responsible for payment of, any Workers'
Compeniaiion premiunu or 'for;8ny 'other claim.or benefi.i for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or emplpyee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensaiion laws in connection, with the
performance of (he Services under (his.Agreerneni.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto,to the other pony
shall be deemed to have b«en duly delivered bf given at the'ilme
of (nailing by certified mail, postage prepaid.-in a United States'
Post Office addressed (o the parties at ihc addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT.. This Agreement.may be am^ded, waived
or disdtarged only by ah instrument in -wriij'n'g sign'^ by the
parties hereto arid oiily aRer apprava) pf such amendrneni,
waiver or discharge by the Govemor'and Executive Council, of
the S.iale of New Hampshire .unless no sucK .adbroval Is required
under the.circumstances pursuant to State law, rule pr policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This A^erncnt shall
be governed, iitterpreted .sn^ conistru^ ih-accorda.nce with the-
lavvs of the State of.New Ha'inpshire,; and is. binding upon anid
inures to the benefit pf the panics and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is (he wording
chosen by the psnies to express iheir mufual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any.party.
Any actioru arising out of this AgrMmeni shall be bro'ught.and
maintained in New Hampshire Supefiof Court which'shall luve
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between ihc terms of this. P*37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments end amendment thereof, (he terms of (he
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties, hereto do not intend to
behcfii a.ny third parties and (his. Agreerneni' shall not ^
construed to confer any such benefit.

Page 4 of 5 ^0d^htractor Initials' <
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Federal Award Date: May 28, 2021,
UEI:HLNJBCybGVM3
'21. HEADING^. TKe heitdtngs (hro'ughoui the AgrMmem are
for refercrKe purposes pnly,.a^ ihe'words contained therein
shall in np way bciheld to,explain, modify, wplifyor aid in the
interprtiaiion; cphstiyctipn or meaning of ihe-proviaions of this
Agreement.

22. .'SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth'in the attached EXHIBIT A ere incorporated
herein by reference.

23.'SEV£RAB1LITV. In the event any of the provisions ofthis.
Agreement are held .by a couri of con^tent jur^^iction ip .be'-
contrary to any state or'fcdcral law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE'AGRCEMEN.T.'This Agreement, which may be.
executed in a nurhber of couni^'ahs, each of which shall be
deemed an original', constitutes .the en.tirp agreement and
und.ersuinding between the panjcs.-and ■ supersed.es all prior
agfcemenis and undentandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.-

Page 5 oifS
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EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL.PROVISIONS

1. On or before the. date.set forth in Block; IH of the Cental Provisions, the G.ontractpr s}iall
deliver to the State an independent audit of the.Contrectof's entire agency by a qualified
independent auditor in good standing with the state and federal government.

2. This audit shall be conducted.in accordance with the oudit requirements of Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 2 CFR 200, Subpon F- Audit Requirements.

y. This audit report shall include a schedule of revenues and expenditures by cohtract.or grant.
-  number.of ell expenditures during the Contractor's fiscal year. The Contractor shall utilize a
competitive bidding process to choose a qualified financial auditor.

4i The,audit shall be forwarded to NH DOE within one month of the time of receipt by the
Agency, accompanied by an action plan for.each finding or questioned cost.

5. Delete the following from paragraph 10 of the General Provisions: 'The form, subject matter; ^
content, and number of copies of the Termination Report shall be identical to those of.any Final
Report dcMribcd in Exhibit A."

6. The costs charged under:this contract shall be determined as allowable under the cost principles
detailed in 2.CFR 200 Subpart E - Cost Principles.

7. Program arid financial records pertaining to this contract shall be retained by the Agency for 3
(three) yeans from the date of.submission of the final expenditure repoil per 2.CFR 200.333 ~
Retention Requirement for Records and until all audit findings have been r^p.lved-

8. In accordance with Public. Law 103-333, the "Departments of Labor, H^lth and Human
Services, and Education, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act.of 1995", the following
provisions are applicable to this grant award:

a) Section 507: "Purchase of American-Made Equipment and Products" It is the sense
of the Congress that, to the greatest extent practicable, all equipment arid products
purchased with funds made available in this Act should be Americanrmade."

b) Section 508: "'When issuing statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid
solicitations and other documerits.dcscribing projects or programs funded in whole or in
part with federal money, all states receiving federal funds, including but not limited to
state and local governments and recipients of federal research ̂ ants, shall, clearly state
(1) the percentage of the total costs of the program or project which will be financed
with 'fedieral money, (2) the dollar amount of federal fjnds for the'project or program,
and (3) the percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program
that will be financed by non-govemmental sources."

9. CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT. All final required reports and reimbursement requests shall be
subrtiillcd to the State within thirty (30) days of the completion dale (Agreement Block 1.7).

SNHS2I0INHLWC5/6 ; 'ExhibiuA.BA
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10. ADVANCES, Advance funds must be used soIclyTor appropriate LIHWAP expenditures.
Advance program "funds are "to be used, only for Water Assistance Program vendor payments. All
Water-Awistaricc program payments, including Advance progranfi.paymcnts, must be transferred
from the Cpmmunity.Action Agency's general operating Bccount into the CAA's LIHEAP
account and assigned with a specific account H to differentiate those funds.from LtHEAP program
funds within 48.hbu;rs.aftcr being received electronically'from the State. CAAs must'submit the
bank account number of t.hc designated bank account for the advan'cc funds'to NH DOE prior to
the eloctrdnic submission of the funds to the CAA. Unspent Advance program fun'ds mustTcmaln
in the FAP dedicated account at all times and canriot be comingled with any other CAA funds.
CAAs are required to submit a complete electronic copy of the FAP-dcdicatcd.!bank ac«unt
statem'ent to NH DOE on a monthly basis.

.SNKS210INHLWC.S/a
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EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The Contractor agrees to provide Low.'Income Household Water Assistance Program services to
qualified low income individuals, and agrees to perfomi ail such services and other work hecessafy to
operate ̂ e Program in accordance with the r^uirements of this contract, the principles and objectives
set forth in the Low-Income Household Water Assistance Program Procedures Manual,,Information
Memoranda, 'and other guidance as determined by NH DOE.

Water Assi9iance.Program (LlH WAP) services wit! be defined to include the following categories:

1. Outreach, eligibility, determination and certiflcatioh ofLIHWAP applicants.

2. Payments directly to water/sewer vendors to remove watcr/scwcr arrearages for currently
qualified clients .

3. Payments directly to current landlords for proven water/scwcr arrearage .amounts for their
renters who pay their watCT/scwcr costs as undefined portions of their rent.

SNMS210INHLWCJ/* ExhibUl.A,
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EXHIBITC
V

PAYMENT TERMS

In consideration of thc:satisfactory performance of thc.serviccs as determined by the State, the Slate

agrees to pay ov^ to the Contractor the sum of 51,375,947.00 (which hereinafter is referred to as .the

-Grarii").

Upon the Slate's receipt of the 2022 LIHWAP American Rescue Plan Act and Consolidated

Appropriation Act grants f^om.lhe US Department of Health.and Human Services, and .Governor and

Executive Council approval, the following funds will be authorized:

American R«cuc Plw.Act:

590,367.00 for administration costs, of which $36,147.00 will be issued as a cks\i advance;
$515,520.00 for program costs, of which $206,208.00 wiil be issued as a cash advance;.

Consolidated Appropriations Act:

$112,-256.00 for edminislratioh costs, of which $44,902.00 will be issued.as a cash advance;

$657,804.00 for program costs, of which $263,122.00 will be issued as a cash advance;

The .dates for this contract, are upon Governor and Council approval through September 30, 2023.

Approve! to dbligate (Exhibit j) the above-awarded funds will be provided in writing by the New

Hampshire. Department of Energy to the Contractor as the Federal funds become available.

Drawdowns from the.balance of funds will be made to the Contractor only after written documentation

.of cash need is submitted to the State. Disbursement of the Grant shall be in accordance with

procedures-ulaplished by the Stale-as detailed in the Low-Income Household Water Assistance

Program Procedure Manual.

CFDA Title;

CFDANO:

Award Harnc:

Federal Agency;

Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program

93.568

Low (ncome.Home Energy Assistance Program

Dept. of Health &. Human Services
Administration for Children and Families

O fTice of Community Services

SNHS 2tOINHLWCS/6
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NEVV HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENER0Y
•t * *

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

The Comractor idcmified in Section,! .3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the'proyisiphs of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act ori988 (Pub. L. 1,00-690, Title V, Subtitlc.D; dlU.S.C.
701 ,et seq.), and further agrees'j.o have the Contractor's rq>re$eniative. as ideniified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the Gerieral Provisions, execute thp followihg Certification:

CERTIFIGATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
alternative f - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTM ENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

.This certification is .required by the regulaii,ohs;implememing Sections 5151-51,60 of the Qrug-Free W.prkplace
Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtiilc D; 41. U.S.C. 701 ct scq.). The January 31, 1989 regulations were
arncnded arid, published,as Part II of the May 25; 1990 Federal Register fpages 21681-21691), and require
certificaiion by grantees (and by inference sub-granlccs and sub-contractors) prior to award thai they will
rnainiain .a drug-free workplace; Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides thai a grantee (and byinference
sub-gfamees and sub-contrac(ors).that is a state may elect to make'onecenificatipn to the Department in each
federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification.
The certlficale set out below is a matcria! representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the Agency
awards tKc.grarit. False .cerijfication pr vioiaiion of (hecertiftcaiion shall be grounds for suspension of payments,
suspension or. termination of grants, or government-wide suspension or debarmeht. Contractoreusing'this fo'nn
should send it to:

LIHWAP Director, New Hampshire Department of Energy.
21 So. Fruit St.. Sic. 10. Concord, NH 03301

(A) The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free, workplace by:
*  •»

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees thai the uni.ewful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession of or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in' the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will betaken agoinsi employees for violation of such
prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program'to iriform employecs.abbul,

(1) the dang<^ of drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) the grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(-3) any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violatipris occurring in

the workplace.

(c) Making it a requiremehl that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the ̂ nt be
given acopy of the. statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Noiirying;the employee in the slalerheht required by paragraph (a) that, as a..condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

(I) abide by the Icrms ofthc statement; and

P37 Exhibiu D thru H
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CERtinCATIpN REGARD DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS
/^TERNATIVE1 -/FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDlVlDUAl^, cont'd

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICyLYURE - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

(2) notify the employer in writing of his or herconvlclion for a yiblationof a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

(e) Notifying (hc.agency in writing, within ten.calendar days airier receiving notice under
subpara^ph (d)(2)* frpm an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction..
Employere ofconvict'ed employees must provide notice, including position title,- to eve^ grant
ofTiccron'-whose grant activity the convicted ̂ pjoyce was working, unless the federal agency
hu desigruted.Q central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice.shall include the
identification numberfs) of each affecteid grant;

(f) T®'''.mg ope.of the foll.owing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
tc^naiion, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Requiring such employee to'participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assisiance.or
rehabiliiatich program approved for such purposes by a federal, state, or local health, law
enforcement-, or other appropriate agency.

(g) Making a good faith efTon to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (0- .

(B) The graniee may inseil in the space provided below the sit^s) for the performance of work done in
conniption with the specific'grant.

Place of Pcrfofmance.(sireet address, city, courity. state, zip code) (list each location)

Check .Q if there are workplaces on file (hat arc not identified here.

Southern'New Hampshire Services September 21, 2022 to September'30. 2023
Contractor Name Period covered by this Certification

Donnelee Lozeau, Chief Executive Officer
Na^ and Title of Authorized Contractor Representative

lalurc ^ Date ~C^^ctor Reprcschtsllve.^f^ri'ature
P37'£xhibits 0 ihfu H;
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT Of ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

The Coniractor ideniificd in Secl ton 1.3 of (he General Provisions agrees lo comply with thc.provisipns of
Section 31? of Public Law iOI-t21, Ooyemmcnl wide Guidahce for New.Restrictions on Ilpbbying..ohd.3l
U.S.C. I3S2, and further agrees to have the Contractor-s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and l.l2-of
the General Prpvisions; execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

DS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US department of AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF LaJBOR
US DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

Programs (indiCBte applicable program covered):
LtH,WAP

■Contract Period: September 21. 2022 to September'30. 2023

The undersigned certifies .to the best of his or her knowledge and belief that:

(.1) No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any
■pcTapn fpr influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of
Congrus, an officer or'crnplpyec ofCongress^or an employee of a member of Congriess in connection
with the-Bwarding of any .federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment. or modification of-any
federal contract) grant, loan; or cooperative apeemeni (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor).

(2) ifany funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an
officer or. employee of Congress, or an ernployeeofa member ofCongress in connection with this
federal contract, gjant, loan, or=cooperaiivc.8grccmcnl (and by'specific mention sub-^antee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. '-Disclosure Form lo Report
Lobbying", in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.

(3) The undersigned shall require (hat the language of this ceriificaiion be included in the awarddocumenit
for sub-awards at ell tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and
codpcratiyc agreements) and that all sub-rccipiehis shall certify 'and disclose accofdihgiy.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which.reliance was placed when this trahsaction'Was
made or entered,into. Subrnission ofihis certification is a prerequisite for making oreniering into this transaction
.impoc^ by Section 1352, Title 3.1, US. Code. Any person who fails to fi le the required certificaiion shall be
subjrat to a civil penaliyof not less than.SlO,000 and not more than SI(K),000 for each such failure.

Date

ff Chief Executive Officer
Cohtractof Reprm^iative Signature Conirador's Representative.Title

■Southern New Hampshire Services
Contractor Name

.P37 Exhibits'O Ihni H
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

standard EXHIBIT F

The Contractor idenlinocl .in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive O^ice of the Ptiesident, Excculivc Ordcr 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Dcb'armerit, Susjaension,
and Other R^ponsibility Ma.tlers, and further agrees to have the Coniractor's representative, as identified in
SMtlons.i.l I .and 1.12 of (he Generat.Prpvisicns. execute the following Certification:

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARIMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
■RESPONSIBILiTV MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructionsfor Certipcation

(1) By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certifica.lion set oui.telow.

(2) The inability of a-persdh to provide the certification required bclo.w will not necessarily result in.dehial.of
participation in this covered transaction. -If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit.an
explanation of why it .cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be. considered in
connection with.lhe NH DOE's determination whether lo enter into this transaction. Ho.wevefi.feilure oTihe
prospective primary participant.to furnish a certification or an explanatiorishall.disqualify such person from
participation in (his transaction.

(3^ The certification in this.clause. is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed'when NH
•DOE determined lo enter Into this transociion. If it is later determined thai the prospective primary
participant;knowingly rendered an erroneous certificalion, in addition to other remedies available to.the
foderai gbverhment', h(H DOE may tenmihate this transaction for cause or .default.

(4) The-prospective primary participant shall provide infunediate written notice to the NH DOE agency to whom
this proposal (contra.ct) is submitted'if at any time the prospective primary participant learns th^t its.
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erTOrieou$''by reason of changed circumstances'.

(5) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended." "ineligible." "lower lief covered iransaciion,"
"particip'ant," ■•pcri;pn,""prirnary covered Ifansactlon," "principal," "p'foposal," and "vpi'uniarily c'xcluded,"
as used'.in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules
implementing Executive Order 12549; 45 CFR Part 76. See the attached definitions.

(6) l^'prdspective'p'rirna^ry participant, agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) (hat should the proposed
covered.trahsaction.be.eniered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction with
a persdh who is debarred^ suspended, deciared ineligible, of voluntarily excluded from partlcipation/in thi's
covered transaction, unless authorized by NH D.OE.

(7) The prospective prirnai> participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the clause
tilled "Certificalion Regarding'DebBrmenl, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion r Lower Tier
Covered Transactioris," provided by NHDOE, without modification, in alHowcr tier covered transactions
and.in a|) solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

(8) A participant in a covered irensadion may rely upon a ccrtiHcaiion of a prospective participant in a lower.tier
covered transaCiioh that it is not,debarred, suspended, ineligible; or involuntarily excluded, from the. covered
transaction, unless it knows (hat the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and
frequency by which it dcterrn'ines thceligibiiiiy of its principals. Each participant may. but is not required
to. check the Non-procurement List (of excluded parties).

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in.order
to render in good fajlh (he certification required by this clause. The knowledge and informAtiqnoif a
participa'ht is not required to .exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the dfdiria'ry
course dfbusiness dealings.

(10) Excq:|t-,fqr transactions authdrized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered
transa'ciioh kno'wingly.enters into.a tower tier covered transaction with.a person who iis s.uspend^. deba.ffed,
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in (his transaction, in addition to other remedies
aviailable to thcTederal g'ovenunent, NH DOE may terrninate this transaction for cause or default.

P37 Exhibits D thru H
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENiSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS- PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS. cod(M

Certi/icqtion /tegording Debormeht, Suspension, and Other
Hesp'onslbifity Matters • Primary Cowercrf. Transactions

(1) The prospicciivc primary participani ceniHes lo the best of its knowledge and belief, thai it andils
pHhcipals:

(a) arc not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for dcbarm.cni, declared ineligi^b.le. or yoluntarily
' " cxclud^ from covert transactions by any federal dcparimenl .or agency;

(b) have not within a .ihfcc-year period preceding this proposal (coniract) been convicted df.or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or for a criminal ofTense in
corme^ion with obtaining, aitempiing to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state or local)
iransacli.on or a cpniraci under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State anliirusi statutes
or commission ofcmbezzlemem. theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or desirijciibn of r.ecords,
making false siaiements, or receiving stolen property;

(c) arc noVprcscn'lly indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govcrruhcrilal entity
(federal, state or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I) (b) of
this.cei1inca.lion; and

.(d) have liot within a ihrcc-ycar period preceding this opplicatiofVproppsal had one or, more public
(federal, state or local) transactions lerminated for cause or default.

(2) Where the prospccliye primary participant is unable lo certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall allach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, In'eiigibUity and
Veluritdiy Exctusion • Lower Tier Covered Transdctions

(To Be Supplied to Lower Tier Participants)

By slgning and submiltirtg thisjowcr tier prppowl (coniract), the prospective lower tier participani. as defined in
45 CFR Part 76, ccnifics to the best oflts knowledge and belief that it and Its principals:

(a)' arc. not presently debarred, suspendwJ, proposed for dcbarrnent, declared ineligible, or volunlarijy
excluded from participation In this lransaclion by .any federal department or agency.

(b) where the prospeci.ive lower tier participant is unable lo certi fy to any of the above, such
■prospective'participatit shall'atlach an explanation to this propbsa.l (contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (coniract) that it will.iiKludc this
clause entitled "(icrtificalion Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibiliiy, and Voluntary Exclusion - Lower
Tt.ef Oovcfcd Transactions," without modiricaiion in all lower lief-covercd transactions and in all solicitations for
lower (ritf-covefed trbnsactiph/

/ Chief Executive Officer

{bniractor RepresentaiM Signature Contractorls Rcprcscnialivc Title

Southern New Hampshire Sdryices
Contrectof Name Dale
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT.OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT Q

certification regarding the

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

Conirector. ideniined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
rispfuentalive as idenliried in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Proviisions. to execute'.lhe following
cdlification:

By siting and submiiiing'this, proposal (contract), the Contractor agrees to make reasonabie.efforis to
comply with all.appticablC provisions of the Americans, with Disabilities Act of 1990;

9^ Chief Executive OlTiccr

ntractor R^'reserital^ Signature

Southern New Harhbshire Services .

Contractor Name

Contractor's Representative Title

Date

'P37 Ezhibiu D thru H
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NE^y HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY ♦

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

certification
Public Law 103-227, Part C

ENVIRONMENTAL TOBAGCO SMOKE

In accordanccVilK Part C of Public L«w 103'227, the "Pro-Chlldrcn Act of 1994", smoking:may not be
pcrmiticd in any portion of any indoor facility owned or regularly uaed for the provision of health;,day care,
education, or library services to" children under the age of 18. if the services arc fiinddd by federal pfograrm cither
directly or throu^ stale or local governments. Federal programs include grants, cooperative agreements, Ipans
and |oan;guarantees, and contracts, the law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences,
racilities fund^. solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions or faciliiies used for inpatlent.drug of
alcohol ireatmehi.

The abovc.language must be included in any sub-awards (hat contain,provisions for children's services ind that
all sub-grahiees shall certify comp.liarw. accordingly. Failure to comply with the provisions of this law may result
in the imposilionof a civil monetary penalty of up to SI,000 per day.

Chief Executive O^ccr
nwctor RepresehiatiwSignature Contractor's.Representative Title

Southern New Hampshire Services
Contractor Name ^le '

P37 Exhibits D Ihni H
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LIHWAP A{^roval to Obli{atc.

STATE

EXAI^FLEONLY
APpRpV/^ TO pBUGATE

FUEL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM

eihibdl

First7/1/2019 Wood and SEAS OrW AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 . total
[CONTRACTEO BUDGET s ' -536.220.00 5.646,370.00 4,582:60. 357.200.00 6,546,372.60
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVioUSLybBLIGATEO .
0.00

0.00

0.00

6.00
0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

[THIS APPROVAL-TO OBLIGATE ' 0.00 0.00 0.00 0:00. 1.165;9S1-.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO pBUQATE
0.00

S38.220.0.0
1.165.551.00

4,460.819.00
0:00

4,562.60

0.00

357,200,00
i;i65.S5i;00

5.380,821.60

BMCA

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FAPROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE16 total
{CONTRACTED BUDGET' 05,665X10 1.003.S66.00 1,000.00 69.960.00 1,170,209.00
EXPECTEO BUDGET

PREVIOUSLV bBLlbATEO 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

o:oo
[THIS. APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE •  0.00 207.112.00 0.00 0.00 207,112.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

.0.00

95.663.00

207,112.00
796.474.00

0.00

.1.000.00-
0.00

69.960.00
207:112.00
963.097.60

SNHS

First 7/1/2019 AOMIN. FAPROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE. 16 TOTAL
{CONTRACTED BUDGET 163,777.00 1,716,152.00 1,000.00 64,220.00 1.887:149:00-

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED :o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

[THIS APPROVAL TO OBUGATE 0.00 354,578.00 0.00 0.00 354.576.00

TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBUGATE

0.00

163.777.00

354.576.00

1,363.974.00

0.00

T.000.00
0.00

84,220.00
354,578.00

1.612,571.00

803

First-7/1/2019. AOMIN. FAPROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE-16 TOTAL-
[CONTRACTED-BUDGET. 83,635.00 879,501.00 825.00 64,960.00 1i029.121:00 1

EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 •  0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00 .
(THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE 0.00 181,504.00 0.00 0.00 18i;504.00.. 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT.AUTHORJZEO T.O:OB.U.GATE
.0.00 .

63.635.00

161,504.00

697,907X30 .
0.00

625.00

0.00

64,960.00

1Bi:S04.00

847.617.00

CAPSC

Rrst-7/1/2019 AOMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANCE 16 total
jCONTRACTEO BUDGET 54,676.00 573,593.00 757.60 55,110.00 684.136.60 1
EXPECTED BUDGET

. PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED 0.00 0.00 .. 0.00 O.Ob
' 0.00

d.ob
{THIS APPROVAL TO OBLIGATE .. .. 0.00 116,373.00 0.00 0.00 118.373:00 1
TOTAL AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE

NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE
0.00

M.676.00

118.373.00

455.220.00

0.00

757.60

0.00

55.110.00

118.373.00

ses;r63.60

TCCA

First 7/i/^ie ADMIN. FA PROGRAM SEAS ASSURANC£'16 TOTAL
{CONTRACTED BUDGET 140.269.00 '  1.471,538.00 1,000.00 62,950.00 1.695.757.00 |
EXPECTED BUDGET

PREVIOUSLY OBLIGATED o;oo 0.00. 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

{THIS APFROVAL-TO OBLIGATE 0.00 303.984.00 0.00 0.00 303,084.00 I
TOTAL.AVAILABLE TO OBLIGATE
NOT AUTHORIZED TO OBLIGATE

0.00.
140.269.00

303:984.00

1,167,554.00
0.00

1,000.00

0.00

62,050.00

303:984.00 •

i.991.773.00

.UHWAP1I0INHLWCV6
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Funding AccountebDity and Transparency Aci (FFATA) requires, piime awardees of
IhdividVa) f^eral grants equal, to or greater than S25,000 and awarded on or afler October 1. 2010. to
rej^rt'On data related to executive compensation and associated nrsi-iicr sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the initial award.is'below .$25,000 but subsequent grant modiOf^t ions result In o tote! award equal to 6r-
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reponing requirements as'of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Suthaword an<t Executive Comp<r/».Tfi//o/i In/ormotion),
the Ncw'Hampshire Department of Energy must report the following information for any sub-award oc^
contrecl award subJectTo> (he FFATA rcporting requirements:

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Fu.riding agency
4) NAICScodeforcontracts/CFDAprogramnumberforgranls
5) Program source

6) Award (jljc descriptive of (he purpose of the funding action
7) Location of thc'cnthy
S) PHncipalplace ofperforiTtance
9) Unique identifier of ihe.entiry.(UEI 0)
10) Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemmehl and those
revenues are greater than.$25M annually, and

b. Compensation information is not already available through railing to the-SEC.

Prime graitt recipients must submit FFATA-requireddala by the end of the month plus 30 days in which
-the award cr award amendment is made.

The Contractor identifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 1.09-282 and Public. L^w 110-

.252, arid ;2 CFR Part 170 (Rcportirtg Siib-cword and Executive Compensation In/onnationj, and
further agrees to ha>^' the Contractor's representative, .as idenlincd in Sections I.II and 1.12 of the

General Prpvistons. execute the following Ceriir>cation;

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the New
Hampihire Department of E^gy'and to cbmply with alt applicable provisions of the Federal Financial
Accoubtability and Transiency Act.

DonnaleeLozeau, Chief Executive OfHcer

(Coili^dr Reprcschtative.SKrvature) (Authorized Contractor Repmsentailve Name & Title)

Southern New Hampshire ScryjiccS 2 f' lOtt,
(CbntractorName) (Date) P

Corilractc

Date

Page i of!
LIHWAP CFdAW3.568
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

standard exhibit J
FORMA

As (he Contractor idehtinedjh Section 1.3 of the Gcnerat Provisions, 1 certify that the responsiu to tlie
below Itsjied questions are true and accurate.

I..The Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) number,for your cmiiy is; ■>
H1.NJBGYTXSVM3 ^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (t).80 percent ormorcofyouraixnuol gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, su^grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) S2S,000,000 or more in annual ^6ss revenues
from'U.S. federal contracts, 'subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

NO JS YES

If the aoswer to #2 above is NO, stop here.

•If the answer Co tt2 above is YES, please answer the following:

■3; Pocs (he public have access (o information about the compensation of the exnutives in.your business
or organization thmugh p^odic rqwrts filed under section .13(8) or I S(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(iB). 7^d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

.V

NO X YES

If the aoswer to #3 above Is YES, stop here.

If the aoswer to #3 above b NO, please aoswer the'following:

4. The nam« and co.mpett»tion of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
ofganization.are as follows:

Name: • Amount:

Name: Amount;

Name: . Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amouni:

Conirsciar Initials

LIHEAP2I CFOA093.S68



CERTinCATE OF VOTES

(Corporate Authority)

1. drvineKcfT.- Clcric/Secretaj7 of Southern New Hampshire Servicev Inc'.
(NanM) . (Cofporttion name)

(Hereinafter Ihe "Corporation"), a New Hempshire cofporatloK. hereby ccrtiiy that:.(I) I arh the duly
(Siaw)

elected and ecUng Clerk/SttfA^ of the Corporation; (2) I maintain and have mtody and amf^iliv with the.
rninute b^ks of the Cprporatipn; (3) I am duly authorized to issue certificates with i:espect to .tte contents of such
b^ks; (4) that tbe'Board of Directors of the Corporation have authorized, on September 21 2021 . such authority

to be in force and effect until&QX
(ConoKt temif^ion di^

The person(s) holding-the below iisi^ posilion(s) are authorized.to.execute and deliver on behalf of the
Corpcratiprt.any contract or:other instrument for the sale of products end services:

Donhalee Lozeau Executive Director
(Name) (Posi.iion)

Rvari Clouthier Deputy Director
(Name) (PMilipn)'

James Chaisson : Chief Fiscal QfTicer
(Name) (Poiiiion)

(3) The mcrting of ihe Board of Directpra was held In accordance with New Hampshire
^  (State erincorporation)

law and the by-laws of the Corporation; and (6) said aulhorizalion has not been modified, amended or rescinded
and ccoibues in full force and cfTeci as of the daie hereof.

IN WrTNESS WHERJBOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand as the Clerk/Secretary of the corporation this
/  .-Tc3?^ dav of iiU 20 3^

Clerk/Secretary
STATE OF New Hampshire
COUhnrVOF .Hinsborouah

On this day of , 20 before mc;
the undersigned Officer, peisdrDlly appeared Qrville Kerr who acknowledged,her/himself to be
the Secretary of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. , a corporation and that she/he
as atich Secretary being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein
contained.

IN WITh^S WHEREOF. I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/Justice of the Pttce
Conimission ExpLraiion Date:

DtBRA D; STOHRER
Notary Piitrllc - New Hempahlre

My Conyntelon Explree October 7,2025



1

State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. Oovid M..Sctnlen. Secrttsry of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby cenify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

.SERVIjCES INC. is'a-Newr Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to'transact business in NewHanip^irc on May',28, 1^3.

I furiher cersify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary ofSiate's ofTice have been received end is in g(^ siandihg

as far as this oHice is conceritcd.

Business'lO: 65506

Cenincaie Number 000S75S694

%
A*

Ik

O

A'
%

ftjg

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto SCI my hand and cause to be.arri.<(ed

the Seal of.the StBt'e'ofNcw Hampshire',

this Mth day of April A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



ACC^d^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATCUtJiMnnrriri

.  03/31/3023

THIS CERnFICATE IS ISSUED A8 A MAHER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES HOT ̂AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGA^LY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS.CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTrtuTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE tSSUl^ tNSURER(S),.AUTH0Ri2E.D.
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. '*
IMPORTANT; IflNa eaitlilcata hotdar la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, iha pol)c)r(iM) mual havaAOOITTONAL INSURED provfalona.or ba.andoraad.
'It SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, •utoJacCio ih* larma and'condtllona of U>o policy, cartaln polielaa may mqulra an andorMmaid. A:ttai(amanl on
tMa corii'ncata dbaa not conftr itgMa to'tlW eartincau holdar In llou of aiich'«ndomtnant(a).

MOOWO

FIAVCrou bmirenca

1100 Elm Straa)

ManchMtar NH 03101

nSSt"* AndraaNlcMn- "
1603)«9-M'8 ira.W- (M3,645:433.-

ManeA.C«naOerauagancy.com _

DOuneHiaiArFOntaao covtAAdi HAica

mauMAAi PA>ad*lpAl* IndamntiY inj.Ce IflOM

Bouno,

SoiANim NH s«^«a mie.

P.O. e« 5040

UanOtaPar NH 03i0a

iHCiMae: M)»i^al Empioytfi Cssuafly Cofp •73013

iMauneac:

iKtiMtaoi

iNttmtaat '

iNiuniar:

THIS IS TO CtSTWr THAT THE POLtC/CS CF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PCfUOO
■INOICATEO.' MOTVUTmSTANDMC ANY-REOUIREUEm. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT Oft OTKR DOCUMENT. WITH RESPECT TO WhiCH TiflS
CERTIFICATE UAV BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN'. THE INSURA/<E AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES OESCRIBEO HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL TIC-TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS/WO COMOiTlONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY iOfit BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIfcC., .:

TTOT mcoFamauMCB. .
VI!:

FOucr MUKtua
POUCVEFF .POLKVeXP

iHMiDerrvYYi .  liioTB 1

-A

X COKMIRCMLOeMCRMl UACa/TY

PKPK2392eu 04R)T/3022 04«l/302'3

CACHOCCURRSNCC \ 1.000.000

x] OCCUR DUUeU iOHLMIkO
nPFuisas , too.ooo

hCO (ZFfMv ana aartam , S.000
PFRSONAl a AOY »uunr , i.ocaooo

1 ot»a ACoatCATTUM r afpumfcr;

KACV lOC

0T>««':

CCNERALACCREGaTE , 2.000.000

PRODUCTS. COMWOft AGO , 2.000.000
1

A

Ai/roiaoa&i u^tv

PHPK7392Q38 04/01/2022 O4/01/2023

COUSkNeO SWCLE LMTT
rtaKe«ar«ir 1 1.000.000

X |ant_auTO, MOAT iHAarrtPv *«nan)

owan)
AUTOS 0*AV
KMO
AUTOS 0«CT

—

SCHEOU.CO
AUTOS
HOWOYACO'

.AUTOS OM.T

MOAY iMJURT'tRr'wdainl) 1

PROPCinTOUAMC
lPt» «rd>wm1

»  /

A

UimLIAUAO 1

UCCM'uab I
Xj OC^

CLAhiSMAOie PHUBUTSAB 04/01^2 1 04A>1/7023

CACHOccmuNMCc 1 5.OOQ.0OO'
ACCfttCATe , '5.000,000

1l oco 1 ^ RETTCNTOl'S 10.000, ' t

'6.

Moaxeu coaaacMATiON.
AWMPLOTCRrUAiBtunr yVh
AHVFROPRaiORAlRTNtRfiXBCUT^
oa»ctRWEi«*<*auneo7 } r \
(MMWtHnrlaNM)
l'M.4M0tatf«aar
OEtCfrWTONOB CFCAATQNB

N/A HCH,S202300000I613».) NH 01/01/2032 01/01/2023

XIStSute I I^r""
e.LCACH<CCfHI 1.000.000

e.i,(weAjc-eAeupioTEe , 1.000.000

C.L OtSEASe . POLCTIMT 1 1.000,000

-A
Prolaulenal LIaNl|lv

>. '■

PHPk23B3Bl1 0^1/2022 04/01/2023

i
j

tynll 'r.qoo.ooo

OBBCWFTION OF.OPCRAnOKl i iOCAIAMS 1 VtMCUa (ACOKD Ml, AMnMll aoWM*. m*f M MUCflM a AW* l»K* N AmrtrMI

NH DapaRmani of Ena^gy
31 Soutfi FruB SU«t1

Concbid NH 03301
'

SHOULD ANT OP THS ABOVE OEBCfttBEO PQUCIEB BE CANCELLCO BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WXL BE OELIVERfiO IN
ACCORDANCE WTTN THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOROCD RCPWUMTAlmt

AC0R02S (301VO))

«19tS-M16ACORD CORPORATION. Al> rtghU rOMrvtd.
Th»ACORO name and logpara raglatarad ma/fca of ACORO'
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OyELLETTE & Associates, p.a. \
CEimFIED PUBLIC ACCdU.>rrANTS

Mnrtt R. Corrier. C.RA. - • Gary W. Soiicy. C.P^.
MichadR.Dunh.CP.A. * Gary A. Vsr,ga,nl. C.P.A.
Jonalh«ftA.Huajey.C.P.A..#ii.S.T. C.loscph\Volv«non.)r..CP.A.
SleveA R.-Lamoniignc, C.P.A.

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
C.ompliancc and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Statements Performed in Accordance with Government AuditingStandards

To thc.Board of Directors . * '
Southcrn Ncw Hampshire Services, inc. and AfFlliatc

Wc havc audited, in acco.rdapcc with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United. States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by.thc Comptrollcr General of the United States, the combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc-. (the Organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined statement
of financial position" as of July -Jil, 2021, and the related combined statements of activities, functional
expenses; and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the combined fmahcial
statements, and havc'issucd our. report thereon dated March 3, 2022.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and ^rfdrming our oudil of the combined financial siatc-m.ents; wc considered the
Organizations' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the /audit'

' procedures that arc appropriate in ,ihc circumstances for the purpose of expressing oui; opinion on the",
combined financiar.staicrficnts; but not. for the purpose .of expressing an opinion on'the effectiveness of
the Organizaiions' internal control. Accordingly, wc do not express an opinion on the crfcctivcncss of
the Organizations' internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control docs-not allow
managcmerit or employees, in the normal course of performiii'g their assigned functions, to prevent, or
delect and correct, missiaicmenis on a lin^ely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a rnatcrial
misstatement of the Organizations' combined financial statements will not be, prcvcntc'd or detected and
corrected on .a timely basis. A significant deficiency isa-dcflclency, or acombination of deficiencies, in
jntcmal control that is less severe .than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit.attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of inierhal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this,
section and was npt designed to; identify all dcficiiencics in internal control that might be-material
•weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit wc did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that wc consider to be maieriql weaknesses. Ho.wcver, material
weakncsselmay exist that have not been ideniified.

11 ri Lisbon Sircei • Lcwision, Mainc'04240 • Telephone; (207) 786-0328-* FAX: (207) 783-9377 • \v^vw.oacp"n$.i^ei



Compliance and Dther'Matters

As part of obtaining .rcMonablc assurance about whether Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's-combined financial statements are free from material missiatcnicnl, we. performed tests .of
their, -corhpriance ^yith certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, .and grant agreements,
noncpmpliance.wiih .which could have a direct and material effect on the deiermination of financial
statement' amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions .was not an
Objective of oiir audit, and accordingly, wc do not c.\press such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliancc or other matters that arc required to be reported under
OovernmeniA u'diling-Slandards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our icstirig of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the .cffcctLvcncss of the
OrganiMtions- internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Oovernment Auditing Standards in considering the Organizations" internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose..

OueQetu ̂ LAssociaUs, <PJL
Certified Public Accountants

Ma>ch.3, 2022
Lewiston, Maine



OUELLETTE&-Associates, PA. ^
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUiVTAI/rS

MifkR.CafHer.C.P.A.- - " Caryw.SoiKyX.P.A.
•Mlch#^ R. Dunn. dP.A. Carir A..Wigani.:CP.A.
lonathan A. Houey. C.P.A.. M.S.T; C. lowph Wolverton. )r.. CPA.
Stcv<n R.- Lafngniignc. C.P.A.

Indtpendent Auditor*s.Report .on Compliance for Each IMajdr Program .and on
Internal Control over Compliance and Schedule of Expenditures of

Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

To iKc Bpord of Directors.
Southern New Hampshirc-Serviccs, Inc. and Affiliate

\

Report on Cdmpliancc.for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (the Organization) and affiliate's compliance
.with the types of compliance requirements described in the OiUB Compliance Supplemeni that could
have a.direct and material effect on each of Southern New Hampshire Services,. Inc: and afniiate's major
federal programs- for the year--ended July 3.1, 2021. Southern New Hampshire Sch-iccs, Inc. .and
afnilatc's .major federal programs are idcnilficd in the summary' of auditor's results section of the
accompany ing schedule of findings and questioned costs.

fiflanagement's Responsibility

Mohagemeni is responsible for compliance- with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of Us federal awards applicable (p its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Southern Nc.w Hampshire
Scr\'ices, Inc. and affiliate's .major federal programs based oh our audit of the-types of compliance
rcqui/emcnis referred to above.- We conducted our audit of compliarice. in accordarice w.iih auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicablc'to financial audits
contained in Co^fcrnmcnt Auditing Standards, Issued by the Comptroller General of thc_ United States;
and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of. Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). T^ose standards and the Uniform Guidance require .that we" plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliancc with the types of compliance requirements
refenred to above that could have'a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An
audjt includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Southern N.cvy Hampshire Services, Inc. and
affiliate's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

i '

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, .bur audit does hot provide' a legal determination of Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's compliance..

1111 Usbon Stree.i • Lewsioh, Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786'0328 • FAX: (207) • .\v\yw.oacpas.n.ct



Opinion on Each hfajor'Federaf Program,

in'6'ur-opinion, SoulKcrn New Hatfipshirc Services, Inc. and,affiliate complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on.each of its major federal programs for the year ended July 31. 2021.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Mahagemerit pf Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and afTiliatc is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective mtcmal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In plennitig.ond performing our audii of compliance., we considered Southern New
Hampshire Services, Inc. and afniiate's, internal control over compliance with the types of requirements
that could'have a direct and m'ofcrial effect on each major federal prograrh to determine "the .auditing
procedures that are appropriate |n the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opiniori on
compliance for each major federal pr^ogram and to test and report on internal control over compliance, in
accordance vyiih the; Uniform Guidance, but not for the' purpose of expressirig ari opinion on the;
effc.ctivc.ncss of internal co/tirol over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express, an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southern.New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's internal cohtrdl over compliance.

A 'deficiency in iniernal comroi over compliance c.xjsts when the design or operation of a control.over
compliance docs not allow management or cmpioyccs, in the normal coursc.of performing iheir assigned
functions, tp prevent, or detect and correct, noncpmpiiance with a type of compliartce rcquircfric.nt of.a
federal program ori a timely basis. A maierial weakness in iniernal conlrol over compliance is a
deficiency, or combinatioh of de.ficiencies, in internal conirol over compliance, siich that there is a
reasonable po.ssi.bility that material noncompliancc with a type of compliance requirement, of a' federal
program will not be prevented,.or detected and correctcd, on a timely basis. A signi/icdhi deficiency in
internal control .over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of'deficicncics, in internal control
over cpmpllance'with a type of-cpmpliancc requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in intema! conirol over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with.gdyerTianc.e.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and vv.as not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in ihterhal control;6vcr compliance that we consider to be material wcakncss.es, ;as defined
above. However, material weakness.es may exist .thai have not been identified. •

The purpose of this report on iritcrtial control over compliance is solely to describe the scopc-of our
testing of.iniernal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the rcqulrcrncms of
the Uniform Guidance.- Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Report bn Sche'^dule of expenditures of Federal Awards Required by Uniform Guidance

We have audited the combined financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc. and
aftili'atc- as of and for the year ended July 31, 2021, and have 'issued our report thereon da.ted March 3,.
2022i which contained an unmodified ;opinion on those conibined fihancial staterhcnis'. Our audit- was
conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on ihc combined financial statements ;as a whojc. THc
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposcs of additional
analysis as required by. the IJnifqfm G.uidance and is not a required part of the .combined financial
sfatemcnts. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
'directly to. the underlying .accjo'uriiing and other records used to prepare the combined financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of ihc
cbmbiri'ed'fiha'ncial siaterftcnls and certain addiliona) procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such'infcnTiaiion directly to-thc underlying accounting and other records used ,to prepare the combined
financial statements or to the combined financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in •accordance' with. auditihg standards generally accepted in the United-States of America. In, our
opinion, the schedule qf cxpendilures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material rcspcclsjn.rciatioh
to the combined'financial siatenients as a whole.

OneSetU <SLji^o^Us, .^JL
Ceriificd Public Accountants

March 3. 2022
Lewlsion, Maine"



SOUTHERN NKW MA.MPSHIKE SERVICES. INC. AND AEKil.lATE

SCHEDULE OE E.\PEND.n URES OE FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL VC/VR ENDED JULV 31.1031

Ftde'nl Cranlor

Pisa-ihrongb Cramer
Progrtm er'CloHtr Title

FEDERAL AWARDS

U.S. Dreanmtfn of AtHtuilure:'-

^asS'Tttfaugk Siou't/^ev'Hatnpshlu Depcrtimhi of
Htahh end Human SerHea ■

Special Supplemental Nutrition Progftm for Women.
Infaflis anO Oiiltfren

^esj-Tknug/i Baltnep'^ltrHmort Commuitliy Aetlan fifogfani

Food DlilHOmlna Clueter

ConunodiD' Supplemental Food Program

Federal 'Pas^-Through
ChO.A IdeAiifying Sabreelpicat
Numbrr Number Eapeedlturea

Federal

EKpcndittiriES

10.SS7

I0.S6]

I0.S65

.I74NH70;wiOOJ

:oiiiOYcoo}d4

202020Yt«0344

S ' IJ3JJ92

5.MI

Total Food DUrrlbalido Ousler 24J6I

FcsS'Tbrpugh Sialt afiip^'Hempshlfe Depemnem aj
. EdacetUn

'Child and Adult Care food Prognm I0.5SS 695-^611

.Cblld iNnirltlrMiniKler

SumnKr.fppd Service Pipgram for Children 10.539 155.1122

Toit1.U.S.'Oepartmeni of Agrleuliure
»■

I4.149

S .  s 3JI0J43

U.S. Deoarlmem of HouVint and Urban Develoomeni:
Dirta.Frngfam

Seetioa « Pfoleel-Bajed Cluster

Section 1 Moderate Rehobililsiion'Sin'gle Room Occupancy s s 540.904

F.aii'Thnufh State afNew Hem^hire Carirnat't 0/Pce
a/Stnlegi'e Inlilatlva
CDRC . F.nlitleinent rranli Ousler

Community Oevclopmcni Block.Grimi/
Entiiicment Granu • COVI0 I4.3IS 8-20-MW.])400l 544.3,4]

FaSi'Tbraugh Stale cfHpe Hamfishlre Department af
HtaHh and Human'^Servlces
Emergency- Solutions Grant Program 14.231 eiT-OCOJ-OObi 40.939

Total U.S. Dcpartmenl of Housing and Urban
Dereloprncnl s s 1.126.075

U.S. Deoartment of llnmHand .Seewrit^-.

Fassed-ihraugb Feglaiiel United Wep Agenfy
Emergent'. Food and Sheiiet National Qoard Program 97.024 s s 2,101

FesS'Tbrouf h Stale afA'ew HatnpaMre Cevernar't Office
tf Strategic Inilieilva

Emergency.Food and Shelter Naiionai'Boaid Program 97.024 592600407 20.000

total U.S. Department ef.Homeland Security s .s . 22.101

Subtotal -S $ 3JS9.0i9



SOl/THERiN NKW HA.MPSMIR£ SKRVICKS. IiNC AND AmUIATt

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL VEaR ENDEDJULV Jl.3021

FtdcrtI CrtAior

Pts>-(tirou{h iSrinlor
Procnm orCluslerTlik

Federal

CFOA

Number

Pass-Tltrootli
Identifying
Number

Subrcclpicni.
Eapenditurei

Fedbaj
Eanendilures

Amooni F.orwifd S S 3JS9:0I9

IJ^. Drnanmrnl of Labor:

fast-Thtough.Siau o/N/W HampsMrt Depan'meni c/
•Rtjguria ttA4 Ee'ohomk DeyHepmthf

S^OA Adult Program
WIOA'Disleeatcd WorVer Fonndp Cranu

17.258

17.271

02-0000611

02-60006II

S  73.162

.  17.282

s 1.234.796

122:677
Total WlOA duller 90.444 IJ57.473 .

Senior Comrmiriiiy Service Emplox-meiu Pro|rem 17.235 02-60006II > 4,062

WoiVforce ln\"cttmcfii Aci,(\VlA) Dittocaicd Worker

NailonaJ Reicrve-Ocmonsiruion Cranb' 17.280 02-6000611 U.<8.590

Tola! U^- Drparlmenl of Labor -

S  90,444 : s 2.620,125 .

U^rDfoartmroi of-treaiurv:

■Pass-Thrmgh'Siate off<ew Hampshire Covttnat's Office
ofSirvteglc Milail^
Coronavirus RdtcfPund • COVID 21.019 S s 6,3464.50

£magenc)-Renia] AuissaMe'Progrun ' COVID 21.023 . eiU00l!MmE)U61S)
• 16.171417

Pats-Through State 0/Hew, Hampshire Depannieni of
•Health atitlHuman'ServIca
Coronavirus Relief Fund - COVID 21.019 SS-.VII'OEK^aS-CXtUVOl

.

249.173

Tolal OS. Departmcol bfTrcaiury:* s  . s 22,767.740 .

UJi. Deoanmeni ofEneiTv:

PasS'Thraugk Stase.a/New Hampslilft Caverncr's Office
c/St'raiegIt Inhlartves
Wcuhcriutiion AMisutncc for Low-tneomc Persons 81.042 EE0007935 S  i s 564443

Total U3. p'cpar'ifflcni of Cncrg)-: $ s 564442

OS. Department nfEdweallnn:
PisS'Tftroiigh Stare ofHew.Ha'mpshire Dtpaffmeni

'Of Edueatlea
Adult Education • Basic Cranu to States .14.002 670II-ABE s s 116430

Total U<S> Department of Cdaeaiion $ s 118430

Corporallnn for National and'Commanltv Service*:
Direct Program

Retired and Senior VoluhieeVProirwn 94.002 20SRANH002 s s IIDJOO

Total Corporation for National and
.CommunlD'Scn-icb 5 s 110400

.Subtotal S  90.444 s 29,540,0.56



.SbUTIItRiNiNEW HAMPSIIIKeSKRVlC»:S.liNC. ANDAKriLlATi:

S(^HEDULE OF E.\PKNDltURF^ OF FEDEFLVL AWARDS

FISCAL VE.\R ENDED JULVJI. 2021

FedcrilCnaior

P■s>•tbrou|^'Crtnlqr
Rrocrim or Cluiler Title

Federal

CFDA
Number •

Pass-Th rough
Idenlirving
-Number

Subrctlpicht
Cspcndlinres

Federal
Expenditures .

Amount Forwird S 90.444 .$ 29340.0.96

US. DeonrtmeM of Henlih iod Hompn S«n-lm:

Direct Profrom
Mrad StnrtaiiJlfr
Held Sun

COVIO

COVIO

92.600
93.600
93.600
93.600

93.600

0ICH0i060203

OIHP00024I02
oiHrooo24ioia
OICH0I06OX3C3

OIHEOOOJ7SOIC5

s

•• t'

S  7.176.936
316.971

S.40S
I75J93
■11.4S7

Teiil Held Sun Cluster 7;6S7.09S

FasS'Thrcufh Slale.e/^ew Hcmpshire OJpee of
Streligic tnlrleflpa
Low-Income Home Energy Atiisunce

COVID
93.56t
93.36i
93.361

0-200INHIIEA

C-200INHE5C3
C-2IOiNHLIEA

• 7.991.223
82,143

95IJdS
. 9.024.73)

Feu-Through State ofSev.HompiMre Depemtte/ii
OfHealth ottd Hutrun SerHea
fcmporv)' Auliuiw for'NecdN- Families 93.551

t

IINKTANF S6;647 3.637339

Communit)' Service] Block Grant
COVID

93.569
93.569

200INHCSC)

200INHCSC3
• U363I8

174332

BiMl 1330350

Cdmmunity'Scrvicei Block Grant Oiscrctiocury Awards 93.370 2O0IWCSC'3 28,904

Aflne auiler
Special Programs for the Aging. Tlile.lll. Pan D. Gnmu

for Suppe^lvv Services and Scnjor Ccnien 93.(M4 ISAANHT3SS 18.610

CCdV Cluster
Child Cart and Ocvcloi^ni B^k Cram .93.575

93.575

WINHCCOF
2l0iNHCCC^

1,119349

' 110302

Child Care Mandatory' artd Matching Funds of
The ^iid Cere and Oevelopmeni Fund 93.596 200INHCCOF

U3035I

876,921

Total CCDF Qitsler 2.107372

Fau-Thrwgh (Jntrtnl'lyofiyewHait^hlrit
Es-'ery Siudeiu Succeeds Act/Prrschool De^tlopmerti Grams 93.43d 90TP0060 87328'

Total UiS. Depa'rtnieni of Hcalih and
HumaaSenires s 8|!647 S  -13.423329

TOTAL EXPENDITUReS OF FEDERAL AWARDS .5 179.091-, S  52,962,68.4.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEOiRAL AWAKDS

"  YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021 "

NOTEl: BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The. accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal .award activity o!f Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. "and affiljate .under
programs of the federal government for the year ended July 31, 2021. The information in thiS'
Schiedule is presented in accordance with the requirements .of Title 2 US.Co^e of Federal
.Regulations. Adminislrutive Requirements. Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards {\)ndorvn Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only
a selected portion .of the operations of ,Southern New Hampshire'Services,.Inc. and affiliate,
it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash
flows of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and afTiliaic.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures, reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of.accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uhiforrh.Guidance
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

NOTE 3: HEAD START PROGRAMS CFDA #93.600

Due to the -COVID-I.^ pandemic, the Organization" was unable to meet its. matching
requirements, in accordance with terms of the grant award. The Organization received a
waivcr'frdm ihe Dcpanmeni of Health and Human Scryiccs due to the pandemic to rcm'ain in
compliance with the grant award during the year ended July 31, 2021.

NOTE 4:. INDIREGT COST RATE

Southern "New Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate Has negotiated an indirect cost rate of
•  9.50%. with the Department of Health and Hum>n Services.



SbUtHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE.

SCHEDULE Of .FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEARXNDED JULY 31, 2021.

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results.

FinanciaiStotemento

Type of auditor's report-issued: Unmodiried

Yes

-Yes

.Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(cs) identified?

Significant dcncicncy(ics) identified?

Noncomplionce material to finpncinl statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material vvcakness(cs) .identified?

Significarildcficicncy(ics) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued oh compliance
for major programs:

Any auditTthdings disclo'scd that arc' required
to bc reportcd in accordance with CFR Section
200.15o(a) of.lhe Uniform'Guidance?

Identirication of major programs:

■Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Coronavirus Relief Fund
Emergency Rental Assistance Program
WiDA.Clustcr
CCDF Cluster

Dollar threshold used to-distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditce qualified as low-risk audittfe? V Yes

Section 11 Financial Statement Findings

Nomattcrs arc.rcportable.

Section HI Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matiers.arc.rcportable.

V  No

None rcpprtcd

V No

V  No'

Y None rcpoiled

Unmodified

V  No

CFDA Number

.21.019
2r.023

17.258/17.278
9.3.575/93.596

Sl.588.881

No

io
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fNDEPENDENT AUDITOR 'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Soud^crn'Ncvy Hampshire Services, Ihct and AfTiHaie
Manchester, New Hampshire

Report on the Financial Statements
I •.

We h'avc audited the .accompanying combined nnanciol statements of Southern New Hampshire Services,
Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliate, which comprise the combined staiemcriis of firiancial position
as of July jl,'202i and 2020, and the related combined statements of activities, functional expenses, and ,
cash flows for the years'then ended, and the related notes to the combined financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for" the preparation and fair presentation of these comblncd.fmanciafslatcments
in accordance, with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America; this includes
the design, ■implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to .the preparation and fait'
preschtatidn of financial statements that arc frce-from material misstatemcni, whether due to ^aud or error.

A uditor.'sResponsibility.

Our ccsponsibility is, to express an opinion oh these combined financial siatcmcnis based on our audits.'We
•conducted our audits in. accordance vyiiK. auditing standards generally accepted in, the; UnUcd States' :pf
America and ihc..standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditing Standards;
issued, by the Cp.mptroHer General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan.and. perform
the audit'to obtain reasonable as'surahcc about whether the combined fi nancial statements arc free from
rh'ate'rial rnisstalcmeril.

An audit involves pcrfofming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts,and disclosures in. the
combined fmancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,, including the
assessment of the risks of material, misstatcment of the combined financial slatemcnis,'whclhcr due to fraud
or thor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intcrnol control relevant; to the
Organizations' preparation and fair presentation of the combined financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but hot for; the purpose of expressing an Opjrtion
oh the crfcciivc'ness of the Organizations' internal control. Accordingly; wc express no such opinion. An
audit als.o includes, eyaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness pf
significant accoun'ting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
combined fihanciq) slatemehls:.

Wc believe that the audit.evidence we have obtained is sufticicni and appropriate to provide a basis for pur
audit opinion.

"1111 Lisbon Street i .iewiston. Maine 04240 • Telephone: {>07) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 . ww.oacpas.nel



dpintori

In our opinion, ihc*combined'fihancial siatcmcnis referred to above prert'ht fairly, in all.material rcsp;ectSi
the financial ppsilipn of Southern New Hiampshire Services, lnc...and affili.Qie as of July 31, 2021 ■and'2020,
and the changes-'in their net askts and their cash flows for the years then ended in ac'c'ofdahce. with
accounting principles generally accepted .in the United States oT America.

Other Reporting.Required, by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with' Goverrimeni Auditing Standards, we have .also issued our report d.aied March 3,
2022, on our consideration of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and afTiliatc's internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its. compliance with certain provisions of la'wSi .regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose" of that report is solely to describe the
scope-of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance' and the results of that
testing, arid hot ip pro.vide an opinion on the cffeciivcncss of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and affiliate's internal control over fi nancial reporting or on compliance. That report 1s^ah-integral pan
of-ari'Oudit performed i'h.accordanc'c with Coverniueni Auditing Standards in considering .$outhem'Ncw
Hampshire Services, Inc. and affiliate's iniema) control over financial reporting arid compiliance.

OuiHetie eZjlssodaUs, <PJi.
Certified Public Accpuhlanls

March 3,202'2
Lewiston,' Maine



SOUTHERN-NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. [NO. AND AFFILIATE

tOMBINED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31.2021 AND 2020

• 2021 2020

CURRENT ASSETS'

Cash S 8.496.9d2 S -6;456,l 96

Investments 10,396^716. 9,102.421

Grants receivable, 3,451,639 3:346.435

Accounts receivable 778.610 721 .'595

Prepaid'expenses 136,692 159,842

Total current assets 23.260,599 19.786.489

FIXED ASSETS

Land. 3,045,918 3',05D.918.

Buildings and improvements 13,565.316 13,310.566

Vehicles and equipment 1,575.022 I.5bl'.95l

Total fixed assets 18,186,256 17,863.435

Less • accumulated depreciation' 6,204,453 5.729.951

Net fixed assets 11,981,803 12,1.33,484

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted.cash 468,276 457,683-.

TOTAL ASSETS S 35.710,678 s 32;377,656

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt s 79,998 $ 100,012

Accounts payable 691,695 729,100

Accrued payroll and payroll la.xes 1,187344 l,08?;68l

Ac'criied dbiripensaied absences 424,497 470,30!

Accrued other liabilities 63,446 .53..0TI

Refundable advances 1,424,138 3.36,800

Ov.er applied overhead 179,676 . 180.479

Tenant sccurity-depdsiis 89,232 '83,030

Total current liabilities 4,140,026 3,042,414

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, less current portion 2,878,216 2.949,253

TOTAL LIABILITIES 7,018,242 5,991,6.67

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 28.692,436 26.385.989

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 35,710,678 s 32,377,656

See'lndependenl auditor's report and accompanying notes to the Hnancial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE.SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

GOMBINED. statements OF ACTIVITIES

FORTHE V.EA^S ENDED JULY 31,2021 AND 2020

202! ■2020
REVENUES, CAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant revenue S  jS7.6S9302 I 38.244,769
Program service fees 822,662 796,50'5
Local funding I93,'876 244,926
Rental income 1,227,156 1,1.91,263
Gifts and other contributions 301,421 201,8^9
Interest and dividend income- 228,980 302,600
Unrealized gajn on investments 1,066,602 398,423

' Miscellaneous 744.238 .462,291
TOTAL REVENUES, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT '62,244,237 -.41,842,61:6.

EXPENSES
Program services;

Child development 9.606,743 ■9V330.031.
Community services 1,363,706. 1,505,420
Economic and workforce development 5,786,299 7,450,261.

. Energy 10,666,407 1.2,65 K-S.IO
Language and.literacy 302,502 430.934
Housing aiid homeless. 23,360,337 , 490,824
Nutrition and health 2,111,260 .2.367,558.

.Special projects. 2,316,753 I;876,426
Voluniecr services 112,210 127,449
SNHS Management Cdrporatidri 2,367,679 .2;447,708 ,

Total program scryiccs 5.7,993.896 3.8,6,18,121
Support services: ..i

Management and general 1,943,894 1,876,897
TOTAL EXPENSES 59.937.790 4.0,495,018

change in net ASSETS 2,306.447 1,347,598

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 26,385,989 25,038/391

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S 28,692,436 $  '26;385,989

See independent auditor's report and accompanying notes to the Tmancial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED ̂ AT^I^ OF FUNCIIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUL Y 31. 2021

PrORTim'Sen'iccs

.• .Economic Nutrition

Child. Community Workforce Language:ar^ Housing 'and

Dex-elopment Services . Development Energ)' Litcrac)' and. Homeless Health

EXPENSES .

Pa\Toll $  5.475,948 S  797;i63 J  2,740.989 S l,286,3W !■ 204,412 ■J 725,285 S  912,550
Payrollia.\e$ 409,962 ■ 59.844 ■204.551 97,778 15,619 54,970 68,761
Fringe benefits- l;677.8?I 138,364 623.172 •.382;2^ 23J50 112^040 242,822
Woricers comp. insurance 127.833 9,424 6.924 11;934 6.245 2.469 27,215
Rciircnterit bcricfiUt 375.917 69,893 19'4.325 '96:055 8,755 16,206 74,893
Consuliani.and contractual 72.997 8.5;282 695.516 970,317 801 ■238.467 9,785
Travel and transportation 35,627 3,'264 13.780 15,113 .• 1..045 91210
Conferences and meetings ' - 7,250 2;245 - i;9l4
Occupancy 569,678 136,788 540.570 123,460 24.409 23J49 49,916
Advenisihg 574 640 800 2,418 - 600 384

Supplies 286,505 32.374 12,180 . 61,-729 7,224 53,747 25,794
Equip, rentals and-maintenonce 2.430 47X (4,515) 16,962 3.495 2,579 ' 8,745
Insurance 22.375 28,204 9,341 27.769 .. 527 3i822
Telephone .80,815 21,885 32.839 36.030 2.712 14,294 55.657

Postage 3,368 40 1.150 27.045 4)7 6.632 1,931
Printing and publications 40 - 6,012 1.156 - ■-

Subscriptions - -• 570 • -

Program support •
181,694 •  . 59,109 - • -

Interest 9,335 - - -. ... -

Depreciation I29;6I5 6,300 42;909 5,276 1,266 ' • 13.187

Assistance to clients 234,976 3,992 676:974 7,5I8;979 22,107,876- 393,992
Other c.xpcnse 167.824 .... I0;872 2,937 - 300 224,649
Mi»:e]lanC0US 37.305 1,391 915 1,424 2,241 830 1.905

In-kind 1:203.823 •> - .•

Gain on disposal of assets • - -

SUBTOTAL I0.924.W8 rW4,270 SW3r292 I0.7SI.83S 302,502 23361 ;206 2,127.132
Over applied indirect costs - -

.

- - -

Climioations (U 18,095) (220»S64) (16,993) (85,428) . (869) (15,872)
TOTAL/EXPENSES. ,$ 9,606,743. S  1J6J,706: $  ;S.786l299 s 10,666.407 S

'

302,502 y 23360337- S 2311360:

•See independent auditor's report ar>d accompanvnng nMcs to the nnan'cial.statcmchis.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMRSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Coniihucd)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021

Pfo^m Scrs'iccs
'Support
Services

•Volunteer

SNHS Mattagcmcni
. special. Kianagcmcni Total Program- and

•Projects .Services. Corporation Services ■General Tqial.Expenses,
EXPENSES

Payroll S  84,906. S  60.715 :$ :S79.6I4 S  I2,867;96i .$■ 1.290.991 S  I4.158;952
PayrollUucs 6,517 4.220 45.415 967,637 94.236 1,061373
Fringe benefits 6.176 17,742 ■22.3,039 3,447,290 183,099 3,630389
Woflers comp. insurance 1,770 157 10,661 204,632 7,679 1123.11
'Retirement benefits 6,118 5,287 43,218 .890:667 121,520 1312,187
Consuitaniiond contractuu) 2.122,049 2,780 129,628 4J27.622 .106,077 4.433399
Travel and iransportatinn l.Ui 1.973 33.587 li4;740 4,28? 119,023
Conferences and meetings 1,454 SO 14.412 27J25 1,025 28350
Occupancy 15,201 - 641,741 2,125,112 44.864 2.169376
Advenising - 1.766 3,232 10,414 25 10.439
Supplies 593 6.819 21.240 508,205 .  58.393 566398
Equip, rentals and maimenatKC 2,645 41 8.933 41.793 1,457 43350
Insuranee 2,636 1.762 55.107 ISI343 10.161 161.704
Telephone 3,079 •2,633 26,997 276,'94l 6,779 283,720
Postage • 605 1,470 42,648 13,123 55,771
Printing and publicaiions

' - V 7,208 . •7308
Subscriptions - 900 630 2,100 - 2;I00
Program support 560 - 45:948 287Jll . 287311
Imercsi

- - 51,209 60,544 - 60344
Oepreciaiion 60.191 405.478 664.222 2.670 666392
-Assistance to cltcni.s 2,101 24.342 30,963,232 - 30363332
Othcfexpense • 7.306 413388 797 414.685
MLscellaneous. 1.225 4,760 47.257 99353 2,711 101364
In-kind

• . 1303.823 • 1303323
Cain on disposal of assets (1.049) • (2.349) (3398) - (3398)

SUBTOTAL -2ai7J13 -  112,2)0 2.4l8;ilS 59,702.713 1.949390 31352303
Oyerjapplteij iodlrect'coits r- - - (809) (809)
Eliminations (560) - (50.436) (1,708317) (5,187), .  (i;7r4.004)

total.expenses $  23I6.7SJ . S 112^10 $  2J67.679 S 57;993396.t .$ 1.943394 ^ "tS 59337.790

See indcpendcni-audiior's repon''aitd accompanying notcs.io the nnanciai'stoicmenis.
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SOLTTHERN NEW HAMP.SHIRE.SERVICES, INC. AND AFF(LI.ATE
COMBINED STATEMEKT OF RUNCtlONAL EXPENSES

FOR.THE year ENDED JULY 31 ,'2^0

Pfogrom Services

Economic Nutrition

Child Community -Workforce L^guagc 'and Housing and

Developmcnt, • Services Development Encir^ Literacy and-Homclcis Health-

EXPENSES

Payroll $ 5,556,933. S  933,868 J 2.93?;525 S 1,521,964 ■S -298.880 S  88,866 J' 962; 139
Payroll (axes- 4I9.S56 70;488 22i;893 1 17,494 23:413 6;797 73,387

.Fringcbcficfiis 1,573.633 137,463 615,794 463,923 28,359 21,715 238,512-

Wortccrscomp. insurance 118,066 9;585 7,651 .  15,806 2.Q62 233 30,576*
Rctiremcni bcncllis 31.4,824 88.609 I90;679 93,780 .10.995 4,856 70,742

Ccinsuhani and coni^iual 56,270 70,777 1,775,g44 1,802,601 5,095 370 14,752

Travel ond!inmsportaiion 87,659 10,526 55,412 17,022 600 1,006 .29,296
Conrcrencos and meeiings . 6,007 •

888
-

49 140

Occupancy 491.299 76.188 452.980 122.492 30,276 2,520 64:985

Ad^xrtising 2,664 3:955 2.990 1.171 50 8,169 424

Supplies 328.400 51.663 33.068 66.117 5.006 3,604 35,623

Equip, rcnials and mainienancc 6,553 2,447 21,351 12,146 2,943 - 10,096
Insurance .22.852 42,463 7,617 30.740 - 175 '6.450

Telephone 89:596 16,857 30,761 31,439 2,726 2.023 4l,t)68.

Postage 4,825 165 1.368 30,220 330 385 3,720*

Priming and puNicalions 3.773 - 483 (.851 - -

Subscripitons • - 524 - "■ -•

Program support •-
20.345 60,826 3,676 : -

Interest 9.529 - - • • -

Depreciation 72.782 5,656 41.477 3.191 938 •
10,294

Assistartcc'lo clicnitt 7.850 - 1,084,147 8,336.006 - 349,246 420,251

OlKcr c.\pensc 181,9*44 9,940 7.450 9,318 800 303,005

''Miscellaneous 20,004 688 364 1,862 13,734 10 2,146

In-kind. 1,472,83! - - • • • -

Cain on disposal oFas^, . .. • ■

SUBTOTAL I0;843il43 1,557,690 7,490,571 12,740:01) 430,934 490:824 2,317,606'

Over applied indireei costs ♦, - • • • - -•

Elimma liehs' .. (1:512.112). (52,270). (40,310) (88:503) ♦ . (10.048)
TOTAL EXPENSES S 9,330,03! J- 1,505,420, $ 7,450,261 ^$l2,65i;5IO S  430:934. S  490,824 $ 2,307.558

•

Sm independent auditor's rcpon and accompanying notes to the nnancial statements.



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFlLjATE
COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (Cohilnucd)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2020

.. Support

Program Services Services

SNHS; Management

Special Volunteer Mtmagcmeni Total.Program and Total

Projects ScfN'iccs Co'rponitioh Services Genera) Expenses

EXPENSES

•Payroll $  95.518 .$ 80.529 S  688:044 St3,l66,266 $ 1.258,963 SI4.425;229

Payroll.ia\c$ 7.446 6:02i 45,518 . 992,313 93J8I 1.0.85,694

Fringe bcnefiis 7,355 16)739 256,823 3,360,316 184,217 •3.544:533

WorVcrs comp. iruurancc 3,120 2)4 11,822 199,135 7,822 206,957

Rciircment'benefiu 5,385 3,350 40,.945 824,165 .1163.27 940,492

Consutianiiand conirjctua! 1,639,372 449 136,778- 5,522,308 87,41'6 5r609,f24

Trasxl and tronsponation. 4,805 5,;i63 4l;940. 253,429 '4:639 258,068

CcMiTcrcnccs and meetings .V531 50 28,605 39,270 2.113 41,383

Occupancy 15.0X0 - 595.088 1,850,908 38,053 l:RSg,961 .

Advertising •• •  400 i:270 21.093 •
21,093

Supplies 2.334 4.524 17.992 548,331 39:485 587.816

Ei|uip. rentals and maimcroncc 4,971 63 15,835 76,405 1,398 77.803

insurance 3,213 1,616 51,605 166,731 13,338 180,069

3'clcphone 2.700 2,350 29,193 248,713 6,146. 254,859

Postage 7 632 1,207 43.059 1.5,840 58,899

Priming and ptiblications •
84 8 6,199 61 6,260

Subscriptions -
534 1,058 -

1,058

IVogram support 3.317 - 222,373 310,537
•

310,537

Interest • • 55,013 .64,342 - 64;5.42

Depreciation 46.914 • 388:881 570J33 673 -570,806

Assistance to clients 12.708 - 68.129 10.278,337 •
10.278337

Other expense 1,798 7,853 522,108 4:435 526343

Miscellaneous 169 5,265 130,823) 13,419 3,242 16.661

lt>:4cind •. V
• 1,472,831 - 1,4.72,831

Gain-on disposal of assets . (2,450) (2,450) . . ■(2,450)
SUBTOTAL. 1.879,-743 127:449 2,672,183 40,549,156 1,877,549 42,426.705

Over applied Indircct.costs - - - 3 .3

Eliminations (3.317) - (224;475) (1,931,035) (655). (1,931,690)
TOTAL EXPENSES, $ 1,876,426 $. 127.449 $ 2,447,-708. S38.6I8.I2I ^ S  1,876,897 , ■S40.495.018.

.  • '•

Sec independent auditor's repon^and accompanying notes to the financial stal'cmenU.

r'-.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS'

FOR TNE years ENDED JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

202! 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM pPERATINC ACTIVITIES •

Change in.net assets S  .2J06V447 S  1;34"7.598;
Adjustmehis to reconcile chahge'in net assets to net

cash [flows from operating 'activities; '*

Depreciation 666,892 57,0.86.6
Gairi on disposal of assets (3.398) (2.450).
Unrealized-gain ori' investments (1,066.602) (398.423)

(Increase) decrease in operoting assets;

.Contracts; receivable (105.204) l.4l;978
Accounts receivable (57,015) 99:970.
Prepaid expenses 23.15() (64,«"5)

Increase (decrease) In o^raiing liabilitics;

Accourits'.payable (37.405) 7,1.424-
Accrued pa)Toll and payroll taxes 97.663 13.876
Accrued compensated-absences (45,804) 1 rd;482.

.  'Acchjcd other liabiltiies 10,435 (174.692)
Refundable advances; 1.087,338 .(69L943,)

■Over applied overhead (803) 152,740
Tenant security deposits 6,202 (i;26V)

TptaJ ddjustments 575,449 (I42;078) ,
NET CASH FLOWS FFtOM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2.88l;896 1,205,520

■CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixediasseis (560,313) .(l,304;678)"
^Proceeds from sale of fixed assets .48,500 ?.4oo;
Purchase bf.investments, reinvested.dividends and capital gains (227,693) ■(298,368)
Peposii'to restricted cash .accounts (10,593). (46.103)

Net CASH FLOWS FROM INVE.STINC ACTIVITIES (750,099) (1,639,689)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
■ Payments on long-term [debt (91,051) (96il73).

CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2,040.746 (530,342)

GASH and cash EQUIVALENTS • BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,456,196 6,9.86,538

CASH and cash equivalents - END OF YEAR S  8;496,9.42 6,456,196. ..

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cuh paid during the year for inierest S 60,544 64,542

See independent auditor's.repon and accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NpTES!fO CPMBINED FINANCIAL STATEM.EjsITS

JULY 31.. 2021 and 2020

note 1. QR'GANIZATION and summary of SiGNlFICANT ACCOl-jNTiNO Pni

Nature of the'Organization
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (S.NHS) is a nonprofit unfibrclla cd^ration that offers an array of
services to the elderly, disabicd. and low-incomc households in New Hampshire's •HillsboroUgh Courity aiid
■Rockingham County. The .Organization's programs provide assistance" in the areas of education, child
development,: employment, ener^ and its conservationi housing; and homelessness prevention. 'The
Organlzaiion is commitiied to providing-respectful support services and assisting individuals and fam,i.lics-in
achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the causes of poverty. The primao' source,.of revenues
Is derived from governmental cpniracis.. Services are provided through Spuihem .N.e.w Hampshire. Sc.rvicc.s,.
Inc. and SNHS Management Corporation.

Basis of Accountiog.and Pfeseototion
The Organiution prepares its combined fi nancial statements in accordance with accounting "principles

•  generally accepted in the United -States pf America, which involves the applicail.6h -pf accrual accouhtihgi
and accordingly reflcdt all significant receivables, payables, and other liabilities. The financial-statemcni
presentation follows.ihe recommendation of the FinanciaT Accounting Standards Board (FAS8) Accounting
Standard's Update (ASU) 2016-14, Noi-For-Profu Ehiiiics (Topic 95.8): Presenlolion of Financial
Si.aietnenis ofNoifor-Profii Eniiiies. Under ASU 2016-14, nct'assets, revenues, expenses, gains, and losses
are classified.based dri the e.xistence or absence of donor-imposed, restrictions. Accordingly, net assets-of
the Organization and changes therein arc classified and rcported'as follows;

Nel.Assets wthouf Ddnor Resiriaion.^ - Net assets that arc-not subj.cci to donorHm^sed.rcstriciions
and may be .c.xpchdcd for any purpose in performing the primary ..objectives of the Organization.
These, nei assets may be-^used at the discretion of the Organization's management and the board of-
'directors.

Net .Assets with Donor Restrictions - Net-assets subject to stipulations imposed' by donors, and
grantors.'Some donor restrictions arc temporary in nature; those restrictions will be-ful'filled and
removed by actions .of the-Organization pursuant to those stipulations .or by-p^agc of time. Other
donor fe5iriction's"are perpetual in nature, whcrcby'ihe donor has stipulated tHc'.funds.be mniniained in
perpetuity.

Donor restricted contributions are reponed as an increase in net asse.ts'.wiih donor restrictions. When a
restriciipri ,e.xpir«, net assets are rcclassificd from' net assets with donor'restrictions "to net as'sets
without donor restrictions in the statement of activities.

The-Organization has no, net assets with donor restrictions at July 31, 2021 and 2020.

■Combined Financial Statements
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the basic combined financial
statements. The combin'ed financial statements include the .accounts of SNHS Management Coloration
because Southern New Hampshire Serx'ices, Inc. controls more than 50% of the vptihg power.
Use of Esiimates

... Tb^'O^pa.ra.t.iPn of combined financial, statements in conformity .with generally accepted, accounting
principles retjuircs management to make estimates and assumptions ihal offecl certain'reported amounts of

'assets.ond liabilities at the date of the fi nancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues tand
c.xpcnses during ihc reported period. Actual results may difTer from these amounts.



SdUTHERti/FEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

"NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)-

JULY 31,2021 AND 2020 ...

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

iCosh and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of thc'.combiried siatcmenis of cash flows, the OrgoniMiion considers all unrcsiflctcd highly
liquid debt insirumcnis. purchased with a maturity of three months or less to" be. cash equivalents. The
O'rganization.has no cash equivalents at July 31. 2021 and 2020.

Current Vuloerabtlities Due to .Certain CoDcentrstions

The Organization maintains its cash balances at several financial institutions located in New Hampshire and
Mainc. The .balances arc insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Organization (FDIC) up lo.$250,000 per
fitiancia! institution. In addition; on October 2^2008, the Organization entered into-an agreement with its-
principal banking 'paflner-to collatcra|ize deposits in excess of the FDIC insurance limitation on .some
accounts. The balances, at time's, may e.xcced amounts covered by the FDIC and collaieralizaiion
agreements. It is the opinion of management ihat there is no significant risk with respect to these deposits at
eitherJuly 3.l'.202l and2020.

Acco'uiiCs and Contracts Receivable

All accounts and contracts..^rcceiv8ble are staled at the amount management expects to collect from balances
outsianding at year-end.- Receivables are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting primarily, based on
rieirhbursable contracts, grants, and agreements. Balances outstanding afler managerhent has used
reasonable .collection e^orts, are \vritien off .through a charge to bad debt e.xpense and a credit to (he
applicable accounts ..receivable. Management docs not believe an allowance for uncollectible .accounts
receivable is necessary at July 31, 2021 and 2020.

Support arid Reveniie Recognition

Contracts with Customers

Program fees arc reported .at the amount chat reflects the cpnsid.erniion to which the "Organization expects, to
be.entitled for providing 'childc'afe services to its clients.

Generally, the Organization bills customers and {hird:Rarty.payor$ several days aflcr the services arc
perfortficd. Revenue is rc(;ognized as performance obligations arc satisfied. Performance obligations arc
dcteimincd based on the naiiircofthe services provided by the Organization. The .Organization"measures'
the performance obligations of its childcare services to the point when it is no longer required to provide
services to.the client, which is gencraiiy weekly for childcare services. These services are corisi'dered to be a
single pcrformahcc obligation. Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a point in, time is
recognized when services are provided, and the Organization docs not believe it is required to provide
additional services.to'ihe client.

Based on the nature of services pr;o.vided by the Organization and due to the fact that all -of the
Organization'.s pcrfofrharicc obligations related t"b coniraclis with d duration of .less .than one year, the
Organization has elected to apply the.optional e.-temption provided in FASB ASC '666-IO-SO-l'4(a) and.,
.ihcrefprc is not required to disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to" performance
obligatiohs that an unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end qfthe reporting period.

The transaction price for childcare services Is based on standard charges for services provided, to clients.
Under the terms of the-State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human-Services childcare
subsidy programs, rciriibijrscmcnl. for childcare services provided may differ from ".established rates. It is the'
Organization's policy to set its rates to be consistent with current reimbursement rates. Therefore, amounts
due. do not include significant variable consideration subject to retroatiive revenue -adjusimenis due (o
scttlement,orr;cvicws.and audits..



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATB

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cdniinucd)

JULY 31, 2021 AND 2020

note I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES'(Continued^

-Support and Revenue Recognition - Continued

Cofiira'cis wiih Ciisiomers - Cominued

The Organizeiion has elected to apply the practical expedient-allovvcd under FASB ASC 6p6-IO-lO-4 for
applying the revenue standard..t6 a portfolio of contracts with similar characteristics. The Organization
accounts for the contracts-within each portfolio as a collective group, rather than individual coritracts. based
on the payment pattern expected in each portfolio category and the similar nature and characteristics of the
clients wiihin'cach portfolio. The portfolios consist of major payer classes for cHildcarc services. Based on
historical collection trends and other analysis, the Organization has concluded thai, revenue for a given
pbrtfolid would hoi be matcriallydifterenfihan if accounting for rcyenyc on a contraci-by-^ontract basis.

The Oi^anizalion has also elected lo apply the practical expcdienl allowed under FaSB ASC-606-I0-32-I8
for the ̂ hanctrig component, as the period of time between the service being provided and the lime that the
client Of ihird-party.payo'r pays for the service is typically one year or less.

Private Grant Revenue and Coniribulions /
Private-grant contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, on unconditional promise.to
give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give are not recognized
until the conditions on which they depend have been subsianiially met. Support that is restricted by thc^
donor is reported'as an increase In net assets without donor restrictions, if the restriction .expires in the
reporting period in which the support is recognized. All other donor-restricted sup^rt is' reported as on
increas.c in net askls with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the,restriction. .Whcn.a;rcstrictipn
expires, (thai is, when a stipulated'time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net.assets
with donpr restrictions are rcclassificd to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in.ihe combined,
statements of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

"j-
Grants and Support
Grant revenue is derived from, various federal grant agreements and various state and private entity pass-
thro.iigh grant a^cmenis and contracts to provide funding support of the Organization's programs and
services provided by the Organization including childcare, child development, soc.ial,. health, nuiriiipn,.
employmcrii, language, energy, and special needs services to families enrolled in the Organization's
programs. The Organization has evaluated its grant agreements against applicable accounting siandard
guidance and determined that the grant agreements are contributions (nonreciprocal transaction)
conditioned upon certain performance rcqiiircmerits and/or Incorrcnce of allowable qualifying .expenses. .
Amounts received are recognized as revenue when the Organization has incurred expenses in compliance
with specific provisions of the .grant agreements. Refundable advances result from unexpended balances
from these condiiiphal contributions and will be subsequently recognized as contribution revenue when
donor conditions 'arc met. Federal arid state grant revenue comprised approximately .93%' and 91 %' of total
revenue in the fiscal years ended July 31, 2021 and.2020, respectively.

h'Kin'd Donations

In-kind revenues and expenses represent fnir morkct value of yoluhteer services arid non-paid, goods which
wcrc donated to the Organization during the current fiscal year. All in-kirid revenues in the fiscal year 2021
and 2p20'wcrc generated through the Head Stan and Economic Workforce Development programs. .Since
the rccogniiidn criteria is npl.rhei undcr financial accounting standards, no in-kind revenues are recognized
as contributions in the combined.financial stai'cmcnis and the in-kind expenses have bceri-eliminaied.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, IN.G. AND AFFfUATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINAN.dlAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY 31,.2021 AND 2020

NOTE I: ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIR';

Investments

The OrgoniMlion carries investments in markeiabie securities with readily deierminablefalr values and qIT
investment in debt securities at their fair values in the combined statements of financial position';
Unrealized gains and losses are included in the change in net assets In the accompanying combined
statements.of activities.

Fixed Assets

Fixed, assets acquired by the Organization are capitalized at cost If purchased or fair value if donated. It is
the 0rgahizaiioh's policy to capitalize e.xpendiiures for these items in e.xcess of $5,000.- Major additions and
renewals arc capitalized, while repairs and maitiienance arc expensed as incurrc.d. Depreciation is calculated
using the simight-line basis over the estimated useftjl lives of the assets, .which ronge:-frbm three to forty
ycars.'Ckprcciation e.xpense for July 31, 2021 and 2020 wos $d66,892 and $570,866.'respcclively.

Fixed assets purchased with grant funds are owned by the Organization while used in the program for .which
they were purchased or in oAcr future authorized programs. HoNvcvcrj the various fundihg sources haVe a
reversionary Interest in the fi.xed assets purchased with grant funds. The disposilioh.of,fixed assets, as well
as ihc owncrship'ofany proceeds is subject to funding source regulations.

Advertising
The Orgoniation uses advertising to promote programs among ihc-pcople it serves. The production costs of
adyetlising are.expensed as incurred.

Functional Anocation of Expenses
The Organization, allocates its .expenses on a functional basis, among its various programs and support
services. E.xpctises that can be.identified with a specific program and support services arc.ollocaicd directly
according to their rinfural expenditure classification. Other expenses, that ore common to.several funcii.ohs,
are allocated by management based on effort. Supporting services arc" (hose related to operating and
managing the Organization and its programs on a day-i6-day basis. Supporting services have been subr
classified as follows:

Managemvm and'Cenerah includes all ociivlilcs related to the Organization's internal rtiahagcmcht.

Subsequent Events
Management has made an evaluation of subsequent events through March 3, 2022, which represents the
date on which-the combined-financial statements-were available to be. issued and determined that any
subsequent events, (hat vyould require recognition or disclosure have been considered in the preparation of

"  these Combined financial statements.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES', ]NC,AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED piNANClAL STATEMENTS
(Cominucd)

JULY 3.l.,2021 AND 2020

NOTE I: QRGANiZATlON AND SUM'MARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fCdniinued^

Receatly Adopicd/Accouatiag Proaouocemcoti

Revenue Recog/iijion '•
In May 2014, the PASS issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Coniracis with Cusiomers. to clarify the
principles for recognizing revenue and lo develop e common revenue standard -for U.S. CAXP and
Iniemaiional Financial Reporting Standards. The core principle of the guidance requires entities' to'
recognize revenue .to,depict the transfer of promised goods or services, to customers, in an amount ilm

•  reflects the;consideration to-wNch the entity expects to be cniiiled in exchange for those'got^ or se.rvices..
The.ASU was efteclivc'for fiscal perio'ds beginning afier December 15:'2018, however,ASU 2020-05,
Revenue from Contracts.wiih Cusiomers (Topic 606) and Leases (Topic S42) - Effective Dotes for_Certain
Entities, allowed -for a one-year deferral for implementation due lo the coronayirus "pandemic-. The
OVganizaiion implemented the guidance for .the .year ended July 31, 2021, combined financial statement'..
The adoplioh of this update did not result in adjustments to net assets, or any other account balance and no
account has.been-afTecied in the .current period by the application of the guidance.

V

Contributions

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08: Clarifying the Scopejind the Accounting Guidance for
.  Contributions^ Received and Contributions Made. The issuance of this ASU was in response io the difficulty

and diversity in practice-of distinguishing between e.xchange transactions (reciprocal) and contributions
(nonrecipfocal), as well ^ distinguishing between condiiiphaj and unconditional cdritributipns. The
guidance is effective for the Organization's fiscal years beginning affer June 15, 2018,. with early adoption
pennitted. Mahajgerhent has adopted (he ASU effective August 1, 2020, oma modified- prospective basis. As
a result',.this ASU has-been applied to the portion of rcvcnuc'ihal has not been recognized before the
cITec.tiyc date in accordaric'e'wiih current guidance. No prior period results have been restated, and there has,-
been no.cumulativeveffeci ̂ jusimehi to the opening balance of net assets on August I. 2020.

Receol Accouotiog Pronouncements

Leases

In February 2016, the FASB released ASU 2016-02, (Topic 842), which provides users of the
financial statements a more accurate picture of the assets and the long-term financial obligations of
organizatiohs'lhat letue. The standard is for a dual-model approach; a lessee vvili account for most existing'
capjial leases os Type A (ease's,.wd most c.sisiing operating leases es Type 8 leases. .Both .will be,reported-
on the statement of financial condition of the organization for leases with a term exceeding 12 months.
Lessors will see changes as well, primarily made to align with the revised, model. The guidance Is effeciive
for non-publi.c entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021. with early 'adoption permitted.
The Organization will imptemehi the guidance in Its July 31, 2023 consolidated .firiancial statements:
Management is currently evaluating the impact of adoption on the Organization's financial statements.

NOTE 2: RESTRICTED CASH

The Organization, as stipulated in rhany of the loan agreements associated with the housing projects
included in SNHS Management Corporation, Is required to maintain separate accounts, and make monthly
'deposits, imp certain, restricted reserves for the replacement of property arid other expenditures, (n'additio'rr,,
the Organization is required to' maintain separate accounts for tenant security deposits and any surplus cuh
that may result from annual operations. These accounts are also not as'ailable for operating-purposes and
generally need addiiional approval from oversli.e agencies before withdrawal and use of these funds can
occur.
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC.-AND AFFjLIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS"

(Coniihued)

.JULY-31,2021 AND 2020 ;£

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The framework for meaiunng fair value provides a fair valuc.hierarchy thai prioritizes the inputs to valuatiori
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in
active ma/kels for ideriiical .assets or liabifiiies (Level I me^ure.rrients) and ,lhe )ow«t priority to uno.bscrvabl.e'
inputs (Lcycl 3 measurements), Voluatidn techniques maximize .the use of r'elevani observable inpiiWahd
minimize the use of uno.bservable Inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting
Standards Codincaiion 820, Fair Value Measuremenis, are described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to. the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or .liabilities in active markets that the organization has the ability to
access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs, other dian quoted prices included wjthin Level I that are observable for
the.asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, such as:

• Ouoicd prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets:

• Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;'
'i ''

•  Inputs.other thaii quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

•  Inputs that are derived priricipaily from or corroboraicd by observable market
.  data.by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 Input,must
be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3: .lnpu,ts thai are unobservable for the asset or liability.

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There,
have been no changes in the meihodologies used at July 31. 2021 and 2020.

•Muiual Funds: Valued at. the net asset value of shares held, on the last trading day of the" fiscal
year, which is the basis.for transactions at that date.
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SOUTHERN NEW'HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC..AND AFFI.LIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(ConiTnucd)

JULY 31,2021 AND 2020

NOTe'3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Conlinucd)

The following table sets forth by Icycl, within thif foir value hierarchy, the Organirolior^'s asseu at fair value
as of July 31. 202 ! and 2020:

2021

Mutual Funds S16:?06.7I6

(Level 21 (Level 3>

S  = S s

Total

Mutual Funds

(LeycLU

-^9-102-421

2020

fLcvel 2>

$  r

fLevel 3^

$  •

•Toiol

^■9XQ2.<7\

NOTE 4: INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of Investments as of July 31:

2021

Cost

Fblr
Market
Value

Unrealized
Cains

2020

Cost"

Fair
Market
Value

Unrealized
Gains

Mutual Funds SW2m. SlILmllS ^8.611.176- •S9 IQ2.42I 1491.045

1^e activities of the Organizaiion's-invcstment account are summarized as follows;

20202221
" Fair Value - Beginning of Year

Dividends and Capital Gains
Unrealized Gains

Fair Value - End of Year

5 9,102,421
'227,692

1.066.6Q3

SliLm216

58;405.690
29'8.308
398.423
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SOUtHERN NEWiHAfylPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Coniinued) V;

^  JULY 31,2021 AND 2020

N0TE~5: AVAILABILITY AND LIOUIDITY

The Orgahizalibnls nnanc'inl .wseis available for ex^ndiiu'rc, thai" is."without donor or pther restnctions
limiting their use,, within one-year of the statement of financial position date comprise the ro'llowing ais of
July 31:

2Q21 2020

Cash and Cash'equivalents S 8,496.942 $ 6,4S6.I96
InvesUncnu 10,396,716 9,102,421
Gitints Receivable 3,451,639 3,346.435
Accounts Receivable 778.610 721.595
Total financial asseis.available within one year S23.123.907 il9.626.647

Norte of the rmancial assets arc subject to donor or olher contfactual rcsihciions. Accordingly, all -such, funds
are available to meet, the needs of the Organiaiioh in the nc.xi 12 montlts. In addition, the Organization

.  maihiaihs- several r:escive funds' for property taxes, insurance e.xpcnses, and repair and feplacemerii or
"emergency needs which arc required by financing authorities. These funds may be withdrawn only with 'the
approval of the financing authority and are not considered by the Organization to have donor restrictions.

The Organization manages its liquidity by developing and adopting annual operating budgets'.that provide
sufficienr-fundsTor general expenditures in meeting its liabilities and other dbHgalions as they become due.

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT.

The following is a summary of long-term debt as of July 31:

SNHS. Inc.

2021 2020

Mortgage payable, to City of Manchester, secured by real
estate located in Manchester, NH. A balloon payment of
511,275 was due on June 30, 2010. Interest'is at 0.000%.
SNHS. Inc. is currently ncgptlaiing with the City of
Manchester to obtai.n forgiveness. S 11,275 S IJ.27S

Mortgage payable to bank, secured by real estate located on
Temple'St., Nashua, NH, payable in fixed monthly principal
iristallrhe'nts of SI,833 plus interest through 2020. The note
was refinanced oh October I, 2020, payable in monthly
insiallmems .of S2,I82 plus interest through 2030. Interest is
at 4.000% at July 31.2021 and 2020. 200.776 218.502

Sublolal S 212.051 S 229.777
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Coniinued)

j.ULY3l,202l AND 2020

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT fConiinued^

Subtotal Cflrried Fonvnrd

SNHS Manaeemerii-Corporntion

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
secured b"y;rcal esjaie located on "Pleasant St., Epping, NH,-
payable jh'm.bmhly insiallmehts ofSl,08<l including interest
lhrough'2042. Interest" Is at 3.500%.

MongogC'payable lo Ciiy of Nashua secured by real estate
located.on Vine St., Nashua, NH. Mortgage will be forgiven
only if real utace remairis low-income housing for 30 years.
Interest isat r0.000%.'forgiven'annually. -

Note payable to City -of Nashtja secured by real estate
located on Vine'Sl., Nashua,"NH. Mcirtgage will be.forgiven
only ifreal estate remains low-income housing for 30 years.
Interest is'.ai 10.000%, forgiven annually.

Mortgage; p'ayable to New Hampshire Community Loan
Fund secured by real estate located on, Vine St., Nashua,
NH. Mortgage will be forgiven .only if real estate remains
loNy-incomc housing fbr 30 years. Interest is at 10.000%,
forgiven annually.

Mortgage ;payable tb bank, secured by real esiate located on
•West PcaH St., Nashua, NH, Mortgage will be forgiven only
if real "eswic' fcinains low-ihcbnie "housing for 40 years,
interest i$>at 0.000%.

Mongage. payable to bank, sectJred by real esiate located on
Allds. St.,. Nashua, NH, payable in .fixed monthly principal
installments of S2,613 plus interest through 2021. Interest is
oi2,9d6%atJuly3l.2021 and'2020.

Mortgage payable to MM Parsons and Sons Lumber, secured
by real estate located on Crystal Ave., Derry. NH. payable in
monthly installrhenu of S3,715 including interest through
203 L interest Is at 5.500%..

Mortgage payable to New Hatripshire Housing Authority
secu'r^ by real estate located in Deerfleld, NH, payable in
mohthiy installments ofi$3,327 including interest through
2033. Inicresris at'7.000%.

mi

$ 2I2.0S1

^2020

S 229.777

188,106

900.000

20,000

•194.418

9oo;ooo

2o;poo

250,000

170,000

348,801

326.332

250.000

170,000

26,131

373,238

-342.777

SubibfaL S2.41S.290 SlMJil



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

NOTES TO-COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

JULY-31-, 2021 AND'2P20

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Subtotal Carried Fonvard

Mortgage'payable ̂ 10'New Hampshire Housing Authorit)'
secured:by real estate located In Dccrfield,. NH -with annual
principal repayments, .equal .to 25% of .cash surplus, .due
throu^ 2032.'lnterest:is ai.0.000%.

Mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing Authority
securc.d by" real estate" located'in Dcerfield, NH with annual,
principal repayrhenls equal to *25% of cash surplus due
through 2032." Interest is at 0:000%.

Less; Cutreht Portion

Long-term debt, neV.of current ̂ rtibn

Principal maturities of long-term'debt are as follows as of July 31

2022

2023

2024

'2025

i, -2026

Thereafter

Total

2021

S2,4IS.290

392,924

150.000

2,958.214

'79.998

S2.878.2lfi

S  79,998

72,455

■ 76.399

80,571

84,984
2-563.807

t2.958.2l4

NOTE 7: OPERATING LEASES

2020

t2.-506:341

392,924

•  150.000

-3,049.265

100:012

The' Organization leases various facilities and .equipment under several operating' leases. Total lease
payments for the years ended July 31.. 2021 and 20i20 equaled S865,098 and S6S 1,354, respectively. The
Jcases e.xpirc at .various limes through October 2025. Some .of the leases contain renewal options that .are
contingent upon federal funding and s6hie contain renewal options.subject jo renegotiation of lease, terms.
Annual leases with the Organization for (he years ended July 31, 2021 and 2020 to'ialed $222,1 1.7 and
$133,2)04, respectively. These leases have been eliminated in the combined financial statements.

The following Is a schedule of future minimum lease (»yme'his for the operating le.ases'iis.'bf July 31:

2022

2023

2024

2025

Total

$266,156

77,617

37,598

36.096

■S417;^^7
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V; SOXlTHERW NEW HAMPSHIRE-SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

I^OTESTp COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

J.ULY 31,2021 AND 2020

NOTE S: RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Organization has an Employer-Sponsored 4p3(b) plati ofrering coverage to-all of its employees.
P«H'.cipai'nfe cmpldyees.must contribme at least l%.oftheir wages, while the Organization contributes I.OVo
of iKcirwages. The pension expense for the years ended July. 31. 202). and 2020 was:$i dl2 187
$940,492. respectively.

NOTE 9: RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES;

The Organization is o'peratcd in a heavily regulated environment. The operations of the Organiza.iion arc
subject to the administrative directives, rules, and regulations of federal, stale; and ideal rcgulatoi>
agencies. Such adminj.stroiivc'dircciiyes, rules, and regul.aiidhs arc subject to change by an-.aci of Congress
or. Legislature, Su.ch-changes iriay occur with linle notice or inadequate funding to, pay for .the related cost;
including the additional administrative burden, to.comply with a change.

NOTE lOiCONTlNGENCIES AND CONTINGENT l.lAflll.lTIF^s

The Organization ̂ receives grant" funding from various sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the
Organizatibh is raquircd to use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing
laws and regulations. If e.xpenditurcs were found not to have been made in cdmpliancc with .the lalvs and
•regulations, the Organization might be required to repay the funds. No provisions have been made for this
contingency because specific amounts, if any, have not yet been determined.

Cotton Mill Souare.

In 201.5, "SNHS'Management'Cdnx)raiion entered into a contract as pan of the Communit>' Dcvelopmciil
lnyesiment Ta.x ,Credit Program with the-Community Development Finance" Authority (CDFA) and was
awarded $ I,OOO.OOO io provide funding (or the developmcht and adaptive reuse of on abandoned historic*
-cot,ton mill in doNvntown Nashua, NH- Under this, program, the Project (Conon Mill Square) creked'l09
uriiis of hpusirig and was required to reserve "55 of these units for low to moderate income households'.

As stipulated by the contract, and, .after a 20% program fee retained by the CDFA. SNHS Management
" Corporaiipri entered into a siib.rccipiem agreement with the owners of the Project (Cotton Mill Square LLC)'
to prdylde a'promissory note "and mortgage of the remaining award amount of $800,000. The-20 year note

,  to .Cotton Mill Square LLC is non-inicresi bearing and the principal is forgivable at a rfite of'5% each ykir
the Project maintains the requ.i.rcd minimum of 55 low to moderate income household units.

The Cotton Mill Square Project was awarded the certificate of occupancy on August 22. 2014 and
remains in full compliance with the required regulations as .of-July 31, 2021 and .2020.. SNHS"
Management Corporation feels that,it is extremely unlikely that the Project will fall.into noncompliance
in future periods: Therefore, SNHS Management .Corporation has not recorded any contingent receivable
or .liability ;rplatcd to ihis; transaction. The note repayment is accelerated if the units fall out of
compliance.
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SOUTHERN NE^W-HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND AFFILIATE

;NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Cohu'nucd) .

JULY 3L 2021 AND 2020

NOTE IO:CONTINGENCIES.AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES fContinued^

Cotton MUlSQuorc^Coottoucay

In Octpber of 2017,- the.siibrecipient agreement with Conon Mill Square LLC \yas amended to cea^e (he
annual 5% debt forgiyenessv This modification elTeciively holds the. promissory rtoie balance,'at $720,000
.which will now be fdt^iyen in full at.the end of the agreement as long as the Project maintains-compliance
with the.'original agreement's terms. This modification did not change the contingent receivable or liability
with SNHS Management Corporation.

Coronavirus Pandemic

An outbreak of p novel strain c'oronavirus (COVID-19.) has spread to the U.S. and in March'2020, the
World Health Organization charncicrized COVID-19 as a pandemic. The,Organization was unable "to meet
its- moichingTequiremcnts in accordance with the terms of its Head Start'Programs'grant award due to the'
CpV!D-j9 panderni.c but received a waiver from DHHS to remain in cpmpjiance. Ma'ny programs.that
histdric'ally had direct contact with participants \yere closed or changed significantly Nyhile< staff was
retained. However, the exieni of the future impact ofC.OVID-19 on the Organization's, operational and
financial performance is hot known as of the dale these financial staiements were issued, but management-
will continue to monitor conditions as the COVID-19 pandemic continues artd take further acnpn if
considered ncccssa.r>*.

. /
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/NDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY fNFORMAmN

T.o.thc Board of Directors of
Southern New Hanipshirc Scrviccs, Inc. and AfTiliaie
Manchester, New Hampshire

We have audited the combined fmancial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization) and afTiliaie.as of and for the years ended July 31, 202! and 202Q, and bur report
thereon dated March 3,.'2022, vyhich contamed an unmodified opinion on those combined financial
statements, appears on page I. Our-audits were performed for the purpose of forming.an opinion oh the.
combined financial statements as a vvliole.

The combining information in Schedules A and 8 (pages 23«24), the schedules of revenues 'and
expenses • by .grant (pages 25-29.), required by the State of New Hampshire Governor's DfTicc of
Strategic Initiatives, and. the required'schedules and financial information for Whispering Pines II, J.B:
Milette Manor,-and Sherbume Woods (pages 30-49), required by the New Hampshire'Housing Finance
Authority are presented fo'r purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the combined
financial statements.. Such information is the responsibility of management and was deriv,cd from and
reilates directly to the underlying accounting and other records uscd'to prepare, the' cbriibined financial
statements. The combining infdrmati.on has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in .^e
audit of the com.bine.d financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare'the
combined financial statements or to the combined fmanci.arsiatcrncnts themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United -States of Arn'erica. In
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the combined financial
statements as a vyhole.

f

OueSetU (SLMsodnte^ (PJi
Certified Public Accountants

March 3, 2022 .

Lcwisipn.; Maine,

1111 Lisbon Street • Le.wision,.Maine 04240 • Telephone: (207) 786-0328 • FAX: (207) 783-9377 . www.bacpas.net



SchtduU-A

SOUTHEIW I^KW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. iNC. AND APtlLIATe
COMBINJNCSCNEDUIE of FIWANCIAL'POSmON

JULYJI.202I

SNHS

ManagcitKnt
SNHS. iBc. Corporaiion' .Sub-Total Elimination Total*

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cuh S I7).0d2 S  8.321.110 i 8.496.942 S •  s ■8.496:9.4"2
Inmimtnu

■ 10.396.7(6 10.396.716 . 10.396.7(6
Cnnu receivable 31.896 3.451.639 3.4SI.639
Accoiuiti rrcciv'sble .. 778.610 778.610 771.610
Prcp«id expense! 7«.0S9 60.60) T36.692 I36.692v
Due Trem wKer corponiionS 1.926.9)1 (1.525.011) 2.401.757 (2.401.7571

Total eiiiTcnt assets 7.597.732 18.064.624 23.662.356 (2.401.757) , 23.260:599

FIXED.ASSETS
Land " ' • 619.910 2.426.008 3.045.918 . 3.045.91$:
Buildings and improvement 1 2.221.571 M.343.738 13.565.316 13.565.316
V^ictu and equipment 1.120.322 254.700 1.375.022 . 1.575.022

Total Ti-Tcd assets <>.I6I,SI0 14.024.446 18.186.256 . 11.186.256
Less • accumulated depreciation l.6l].ll<l 4.521.319 6.2CM.453 . 6.204.453

Net hxed assets 2.'I7S.676 .  • 9.503.127 ., 11.981.803 . 1 1.981.803

OTHER ASSETS

Rc'stricled Cash •29J13 439.041 468.276 , 461.276

TOTAL ASSETS S 10.105.641 .-S 2i.606.792. s 38.1 12.435 (2:401.757) .S 35.710.678.

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS '

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Carreni portion efl.ong^ermde^ s 29.770 S  50.228 5 79.998 i .  s 79.998
Accoumi payable 624^11 67.464 691.695 691.695
Acchied pa)-roll aiid ^yroirtascs 254.234 933.110 I.IS7.344 „ 1.187,344
Acerued compensaicd absences 424.497 424.497 . 424.497
Accrocd oihcr liabilities 50.755 12.691 63.446 ■ "63.446
Re futKla fa 1 e advanccs 1.424.HI . 1.424.138 1.424.138
Ovci applied overhead 179.676 .• 179.676- I79;676,
Teitani securify deposits 10.521 58.704 89.232" '■'v- •19.232
Due to other corpertiions 1;14I.9S5 1.059.772 •2.401,757. (2:401.75?) .

Tola! current liabilities 3.935.317 2.606.466 . 6.541.783 (2.401.757) . 4.140.026

LONC-TERiVI LIABILITIES-

L6n|<<cnn debt, kss current pen ion IS2.28I . 2,695.9)5 2.878:216' 2.87lii6

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4.117.591.. 5.)02;40l ,9.419.999 (2,401,757) 7.018,242

NET assets WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 5.981.045 22.704.191 28.692.436 .28.692.436 .

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS i 10.103.643 S  28,006:792 . •S 38.1 12.J))-.. i. (2.40L757) J 35.710.678.
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Schtdult B

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE
COMDININC SCHEDULE pr.ACTIvrriES

FOR'THE year ENDED JULYoI. 2021

SNHS

Management

SNHS. Inc. Cofporaiioh ' Sut^Total Eliminaiien Toial

REVENUES/CAINS A.ND OTHER SUPPORT

Cf#ni rertruie, S  S7.»d6.6l3 S $  57.946^613 S  (28.7.311) ;

'

.$ 57.659.302

Pro|rtm Mn-ict fm 2.329 820.333 822.662 '822.662

Local fundini 1.93.876 I93;8?6 .191.876

Rental'-incofflc- ■ 1.227.156 1.227.156 1.227.156

CiRj and mhCT.conmbuiibns 185.272 .. 116.149 301.421 • 361.421
Iniercfi Income 133 '  228.825 228.980 :28.980

Unrnliud gajn en invcsitncnu 1.066.602 1.066.602 ■ 1.066.602

ln>kiM 1.203,823 1.203.823 (1.203.823)

Mtsceila/wous ■ 350.073 417.033 967.108 (222!870)- .744.238

TOTAL REVENUES. CAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 59.888.267 4.069.974 . 63.958.241 (1.714.004); 62^44,237

E.VPENSES

Program service!:

Child Oevclopmcni 10.924.838 •
10.924.838 (I.3'l8.095) 9.606.743

Commuriiiy Services 1:584.270 1.554:270 (220:^) t;363.7(j6

Ecooomie tnd Workforce Dev. 3.803.292 5.803.292 (16;993) 5.786.299

Encrf 10.731.835 10.751.835 (85.428) 10.666.407

Langufige'end Liie'roejr 302^02 ..i •302:50: •
"302*503

Housing and Homeless 23!36I.206 23.361.206 (869) 23;36p.)37

Nutriiionand Heoiih , 2.127.132 2.127.132 .(15.872). 2.111.260

Special Projecu 2.317.313 •• 2,317.313 (560) •2.316.75)

Vblunicer Scrv-iees 112.210 112.2)0 t .112.210

SNHS Managcihem Corporation Z.4I8.II5 2.4l3.n'5 (50.436) 3.367:679

Total program sen iees 57.284.598 2.418.115, 59.702.711 (1.708.817) 57.993.896

Suppon servim:
1

S

E

1.949.081 1.949.081 (5:187) 1.943.894

TOTAL EXPENSES 59.233.679 2.418.115 61.651.794 (I.7I4.0O4) .59.937.790

r

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS 654.588 1.651.859 .  2.306.447 r.

1

2.306>47

NET assets:- becinninc of year 5.333.457 21.052.532 26.385.989 26.385.989

NET ASSETS - END OK YEAH S  5.988.045 $  22.704.391 S  28.692.436 s S 28.692:436
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SOUTHERN^EW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. ANb AFFlClATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND.EXPEhlSES - BV-GRANT

-FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

Stale of NH Governor's .OfHce of Strategic Initiatives

Head staii Program. ■ '

For the Period

August I, 2020^16 July 31, 2021
Fund #~305

revenues

Progrsm' Rinding S 5,744,621'

Ih-kind - I ;055,443

• Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue i'8.027

Total revenue- 6;8I8.29I

EXPENSjES

Payroll -2.971.787

Payroll taxes 222,486

Fringe benefits i;002.5l9

Workersjcomp. insurance * 67,870

Retirement benefits -218,254

Consultant and contractual 4.1,07.0

Travel and transpohaiion -27,457

Occupancy 353,209

Advertising ' 434

Supplies 189,024

Equip, rentals and maintenance 2,213
Insurance' 1.3,873

telephone 34,794
Postage 1,119

Printing and publications 40

Depreciation 24,089.

Assistance lo clients 12,259

Other expense , 61,278
Miscellaneous 24.106

In-kind ' 1.055.443
Adrnjriistraiive cosis 494,967

Total expenses 6.818,291

Excess of expenses over revenue. $ •
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INQ. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY-ORANT

FOR THE. YEAR ENDED JULY.31. 2021 "

State of NH Governor's Office of Streiiegtc Iniiiaiives

LINEAR Program

For. the Period

October :i.^2020 to July 31. 2021
Fund a 630-20

REVENUES

Program' funding

Other revenue v-

Allocated .corporate, uhresiricicd revenue

Toiol revenue

y:

EXPENSES

Payroll

Payroll taxes

Fringe benefits

Wprlters.comp.'insurance
Retirement.benefits

Consultant and contractual

Travel and transportation

Conference and meetings

Occupancy

Advcrtisiftg

Supplies

Equip, rentals and maintenance

Insurance

. Telcphorie

Postage

Printing an'd publications

Subscriptions
Program support

pepreclalion

A»istance loclients

Other expense

Miscellai}eous

Admmislraliye costs

Total expenses

Excess of expenses over revenue

8,010,833

50

.2.167

8.0)3.050

236.761

I7;?58

82.919

590

15',257

18,181

5,301

328

47,r43

366

■18,751
1..805

835

15,9.52.
13.273;
■3,006

285

39,653
2. >63.

7,448,172
5

599

43.947

8;OI3,OSO
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SO.UTHERNiNE.W HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC. AND.affiliate

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - DY GRANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2021

Slate of NH.'.Coyemoi^s Office of Strategic Initiatives

LIHEAP Program

For the Period

August 1,2020 toScptember'30,2020
Fund# 630-19

REVENUES

Program funding $ 137.270
Total revenue 137,270

EXPENSES

Payroll 66,83.8

Payroll taxes 5,031

Fringe benefits 25,140

Workers .cornp. insurance 189

Retirement benefits 3,732

Consultant and contractual 5,533

Travel and transportaiion 857

Occupancy 7,200

Advertising' 50
Supplies " 2;678
Equip, rentals and maintenance 460.
insurance . 1,807

Telephone ^ .2,089

Postage ' * 112^7
Progran;i.-s.uppo.rt ' 3,649
Assistance to clients (^43)

Miscellaneous 28

Administrative .costs I I,115

Total expenses 137,270

. Excess of expenses, over revenue i •.
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southern newhampshire services, inc. and affiliate

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPEIMSES - BVGRANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY -31. 2021

Stale of NH Oovcmor's Office b.f Strategic Jniliaiives

^rly Head'siart Prograin

For the Period .1.

August l,'2020 to July.3l,2021

Fund # 300.

REVENUES

Program funding 5 1,434,114
In-kind • 121,208

Allocated corporate unrestricted revenue 12.213
Total revenue , .1 ,S67,S35

EXPENSES

Payroll ' 76?. 184
Payroll taxes 57.829
Fringe benefits 222,132
Workers comp. insurance 17,389
Retirement benefits 49,041

Consultant and contrabtuai 3,525
Travel and transponation 3,077
Occupancy 86.815
Advertising .

S.upplies

Equip, rentals and maintcnahc'e ^2
Insurance *2,203

Telephone ' .2.1,161
Postage '

Interest • 9.335

Depreciation 29,93.8
Other expense ; 17,130
Miscellaneous

■In-kind r2-l.208
Administralive costs ^22,876

Total expenses ' ' -^^2.535
Excess of expenses over revenue i
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATE

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES - BY GRANT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2021

Electric Energy AssUtance

Forlhe'Pcriod

A ugust. i, 2020 lb Ju ly 31. 202.1

Funds <5(55

REVENUES

Other revenue j 669,174
AilQcated coipohite unreslricled revenue I _o'l8
Total revenue '670,192-

EXPENSES •'

Poyro" 323.953
Payroll (axes 24,492
Fringe benefits 106,513
Wbrken comp.. insurance 828
Reiir;emerit behefiis " 20,855
Consultant arid contractual 23,368
Travel and transportation 3 j 89
Conference and meetings 328
Occupancy • .53.-321
A'dveriising 415

Supplies . -f ■ 24,416
Equip, rentals and maintenance 2,265
Insurance 2,^24

Telephone .13,720
Postage 9,501
Priniing and publications ' ^ 3.006
Subscriptions * 285

Depreciation ''787

Othjcr e.xpcnse 5

Miscellaneous 347

Administrative costs 56,173
Total e.xpehses 570,192

Excess pfexpenses over revenue $ .
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whispering pines II

(FORMERLY: EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No, A 19,9991-046)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31.2021 AND 2020

202/ 2020

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash • pperoiions
Pre^id Expenses.

S 30,530

7,405

15.319

8,433.
Total .Current Assets 37,935 .  23,752

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED
Tenant Security Deposits 12,884 11.484

RESTRICTEO.DEPOSlfS AND FUNDED RESERVES
Repiacemcht Reserve
Operating.Reserve
tax Escrow
Insurance Escrow

21,712

79,373

5,228

2,911

40,59'!
79.253

■8,531
2j79l

Total Restricted. Deposits and Funded Reserves 109,224 I3LI66-

RENTAL PROPERTY
Land
Building and Building Improvements

166,600
592,108 .

166,600
58(1,758

Total Rental Property
Less Accumutai.ed Depreciation

758,708'
75,722

747.358
59,301

Net Rental Property 682.986 688,057

total ASSETS X= 843.029. S .854,459

UABILITltSAND NETA^ETS

CURRENT LIABlllTIES.
Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable
Accounts Pa>^ble
Accrued Expenses

s 6,537
2,488

38

s 6,312
5j548

205

Total Current Liabilities 9,063 12,065 .

DEPOSIT LI.ABILiTrES
Tenant Security Deposit Liability 12,884 li:484-

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Due to A,iTiliaie
Mortgage Loan Payable,-Net.ofCurrent Portion

29.019
is 1,569 .

18;3)2
188,106.

Total Long-Term Liabiliiics 210,588 206,418..

Total .Liabilities 232,535 229,9i6r

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 610,494 624.492.

TOTAL liabilities AND NET ASSETS s 843,029 s 854,459 .
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY-:EPPING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP),
(PROJECTNo. AI99991-046)

STATEMENTS OF Activities

FOR The YEARS ENDEDJULY 31, 2021 AND 2020 *

202J 2020

RENTAL OPERATIONS

Income •

Tcnanl Rental Income • $ 170,635 %  171,842

Laundry Income 2,475 2,275

Other Income 1,684 1,466

Interest Income - Unrestricted 12 14

Interest tncorn'e • Restricted 211 1,345

Total Income 175,067 176,942

Expe/^es (Se.e.Schedtile).

Administrative 31,548 42.309,

Utilities 45,01.6 42.448

Maintenance 62,604 39,165

Depreciatton 16,421 15,853

Interest - NHHFA Mortgage Note 6,704 6.921

General Exjxnses 26;772 3S.'878
Tptal Expenses 189,065. 182,574

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS (13,998) "(5.632)

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 624,492 ■630,124

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S .610,494 . S  624.492



WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: ERRING SENipR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. A i.99991-046)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 202i.AND 2020

EXPENSES: 202J 2020

Administrative

Management Fees S  .14,400 S • 14,400
Salaries and-Wages 6.781 16,704

Fringe B.e'nefits • 1,033 4,-701

Legal Expenses 56 -

Telephone 3,153, .2,953

Other Administrative Expense 5,125 3,551

TOTAL administrative EXPENSE. 31,548 .42;309'
Utilities

Electricity ■19,887 20,098
Fuel 8J?7 9,677
Water and Sewer 15,713 1 1,613
Other Utility Expense 1,239 .1,060

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 45,016 42,448

Maintenance
Cus.todiaLSuppHes 72' 318
Trash Removal 2,245 2,064
Snow Removal 10,153 10,951
GroundsVLandscaping - 17

Elevator Repairs a.nd Contract 3,718 5,045
R.epairs;(Materials) 37,829 17,218
Operation (Contract) 8,587 3,55-2

TOTAL MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 62,604 39,165

Deprecintidn '  16,421. 15,853

Interest - NHHFA Mortgat?e Note 6,70.4 6,921

General Expenses.

'26,490Real Estaie'Taxes .19,163
Payroll Taxes 516 1,273
Retirement Benefits 631. 1,670
Workman's Compensation 385 915

Insurance 6,077 5,5.30
TOTAL-GENERAL EXPENSES 26,772 35.878

total EXPENSES S  189,065 $  182.574
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WHJSPI-RfSKj PiNESII
(FORMERLY: EPPINC SENIOR HOUSING ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. AI99'99I-W6)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS aND OlSBURSEMEI^S
PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.1021

SOimCE OF FUNDS

•Rfftial OotniioM

(ncome

Teno/ii Paid Reitt

.HAP Rent Subsidv-

Taial Remal Ineome

ScrvlM income

InicrcM ItKonk'

Commercial Inconte

Other Income

Toial Rental nneraiinai Receiwi

£sauu£s
Adminmralive

Uiililies-

Mainienancc

inicrcai • NHHFA.Mongase Note

Inicrest - Other Nolci

Cencril

Other

Total Rcnta) Ooefniont Diiburwmcwts

Cwh Prw-idcd bv Rental Qpcniibrti

AroortialkwiofMortgnec

CMh Provided t>\- Rcnial Qperationi

Aflcf Debt Sen-ice

5  liO.TIZ

13.973

2.975

12

1.614

30.6S7

45.016

65.664

6.704

26.772

6.312

S  170.615

174.156

(174.643)

13

(6.299)

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due to MattaaemeniAtent

CKynfrAdvnncci'

Tntntfer Trom Renricicil Cash R«er%«

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRANSFERS

TtaiKferi lo Rttiricicd Cash Rtiints

and E-rcrow-^

Ptirchate ofFivcd A«tis

RcMvmcnt ofOwncr Advancti

Other Piflnwhio Exoensct

Traiufm lo Tcnam Sccur^^^ PeoMii Accotmt

10.707-

GS.561I

46.4)5.

11.350

79.275

57.765'

Net IncfCBtc or IDccrcnrelin Proicci Account Caih

Proifci Account Ca<h Bnlaftce at Betiwiing of VcM

ftoiec! Accotmi Caeh Balance at End or Ycnr

Comtuxitioo of Project Account Ca.th

BbIhucc «i End of Ycnr

.tS.2i1

15.319

30.5)0

30.530

PtrCpyh

UnrHirkritd Reserve (if aoplicible)

Decorating Rcscne
Operaiing RtKA'c
Other Reserve

Total Pcitv"Cftih'aitd Unrestricted Reserves

Total Prbi«i AgcoOfirCMh

atEndofYcar 30.530
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WHISPERING PINES'II

(FORMERLY: EPPINC SENIOR HQUSlNG ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
{PROJECT S®: AI9WI-046)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY. 31.2020

SOl'RCE OF FUNDS

Rtnml OoeniiMrrt

tncorhe

Tensni Psid Rcni
HaP Rent Sabsidy

Twil Rtntil Inconw

Service Incom''

Inurcit Income

ComiTKicbl Income

(^hcr-lncotric
Tot»l Reniel OacrBiion^ Reccteu

Esfldia
•  Adminijirslivc

Lhiliiies

Maiatenance

Iritertsi • NHHF<^ Montafe Note
Other Noict

CcTKrtI

Other

TonI Renal OixratioM Diihoncmemt

CmK Provided tn- Renial Opcrmtona

AmnnhaitonofMongaee

Cxh Provided b\- Rcnlal Qpemnona

Aflcf Debt Scn-tce

$ H>;»l

22.961

2.275

M

1.466

45.446.

42.44S

35.351

6.921

35.178

6.095

S  171.842

I7'3;597

1166.044)

9.553

3.451

OTHER RECEIPTS

Due loManiiKincnrAegni

OtvncrAdvncw

Tranifcf from Rcttficted Caih Reecnci

and Eacrowi

OTHER DISBURSEMENTS OR TRAiS'SFERS

TnnNcHio Rcairicied Caih Rc^ervci

and EMfOVii

PurchifcofFLtfd Aittu

Rcoflvmenl of Ov^ntr Ad^^^BCct

Other rtftnerahiBE.tochtea

Tranifcn to Tcntmt SfcnnV Dcpo-rit Accouni

(13.791)

•50.659

43.739

36.861

43.739

Ncl Increase or (DfCfentel In Proiecl Account Cwh

Praicci Ae'ceunt Ciih Balance ai Bctinnmt nf.Ycir

Pfoicci Accoimt Cash Balancc al End of Year

Compotiiion of Proicci Accnunt Cnth

Balance ai Et>d of Year

(3.413)
11.732

15.319

15.319

PeirvCath

■Unrctrtlctcd Rcicr^-clifaoBticihlcl

Dnoratioi Re(cr>-c
Ojxiitin|'Rcien-c
Other Reserve

Total Petty Cnih and Unrctlrictcd Rctcrvcs

Total Proicci Accoum Cash

11 EfrtofYffr $■ 15.319-
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WHISPERING PINES II

(FORMERLY: EPPING.'SENIOR HOUSING.ASSOCIATES.LIMITED PARTNERSHIP).
(P'r6jECTNo.AI9999I-0'|6)-

SCHEDULE QF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR the year ended JULY 31, 2021

Description of Fund Deposits

Transfers

Balance From

Beginning of Operations
•Period Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals'

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period•

Restricted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow $  2.791 $ 7,840 S 7  S 7.727 ;$ 2;9ll

Tax Escrow 8,531 ■28,-375 21 31,699 5,228

Replacement,Reserve 40;591 10,200 63 29,142 21,712

Operating Reserve 7.9,253 - 120 79,373

Total R'cstrictcd.Cosh
Reserves and Escrows S  1.31,166 S 46,415 S 211 S 68,5.68 .S 109-224

rSCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31. 2021

NET LOSS

-ADD:. DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED. PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PA YMENTS TO

-REPLACEMENT RESERVES

A'DD/DEDUCTNHHFA APPROVED ITEMS
Repair arid Mainicnahcc Expense's Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  (I3;998j

16,021

6,312

10,206

29,142

S  ̂ 15,053 -
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WHISPERING PINES.li

(FORMERLY; EP.PING SENIOR HOUSING ASSOGIAfES LlMlXED.PARTNERSHIPj
(PROJECTNb. A19999I-046)

YEAR-TG-DATECOMPILATION OF OWNERS'-FEE/DISTRIBUTION

: ' FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31,2021

Y^AR

MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE

^  DISTRiBUtlON
DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE •

12/31/2001 " S „ 243,855 s 243;855

l2/yi/2002 s 243,855 $ 48t,716

12731/2003 s 243.855 S  5,895 s 725,670

12/3.1/2004 s .243,855 $  7,20.0' s 962;325 .

12/3.1/2005 s 243,855 J s 1,206,1.80

12/3:1/2006 s 243,855 $  6,120 s 1,443,915

12/31/2007 s 243,855 c  ̂ s 1.687.770

12/31/2008 s 243.855 $  • s .. . 1.931.625

12/31/2009 s 243,855 c s 2,1.75,480

12/3.1/2010 s 243.855 5 s 2,419,3.3-5

12/31/201 1 s 243.855 s .2,663,190

12aj/20t2 s 243,855 s 2,907.045

12/31/2013 s 243,855 S  7.200
J

s 3,143,700

12/31/2014 $ 243,855 $ 3,387,555

12/3^1/2015 s 243,855 c s 3,631,410

7/31/2'016. s 142.249 s 3.773,659

7/31/2017 $ 243.855 'S • s 4,01.7,514

7/31/2618. s 243.855 s' s 4,261,369

7/31/2019 s 243,855 c  « s 4.505.224

7/30/2020 s .243.855 s 4,749,079

'7/30/2621 $ 243.855 $ 4,992,934
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J.8. MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.8. M1LETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

■  STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31.-2021 AND 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT assets

Cash - Operaiions
Prepaid. Expenses

Total Current Assets

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST, FUNDED

"Tenant ̂ turity Deposits

restricted deposits and funded reserves

•Replacement Reserve
Operating Reserve
Tax Escrovy

Total Restricted Deposits and Funded Reserves

RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building arKl Building Improvemeriis
fotal Rental Properry
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net'Rental Properly

2021 .2020

TOTAL assets

UA B/UT!ES AND NET ASSETS

S  .17,999 S  19,889

%ov 9.178

27,0.76 29;Q67 ,

16,746 16,316

■99,929 84.264

70.015 69,966
6,552 6.548.,

176,496 .160,778

176,000 176,000
1,157,3.30 1.157:330
1,333.330 1.333,330

153,032 121.276
1,180,298 1,212.054.

S  1,400,616 $• I,4r8,2l5

current LIABILITIES , .
Accounts Payable ^ S .2,'203 $
Accrued Expenses . L08^

Total Current Liabilities 3,284 3,622

D EPOSIT liabilities
Tenant Security Deposit Liabijity

LONC-TERM liabilities
Due to Affiliate
Mortgage Loan Payable, Net of Current. Portion

Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S I.400.<S16 S 1.418,21.S

■

16.763 16,332

49.710 45.83.4
1,170,000 1,170,000
1,219,710 |;2I5,834

1,239,757 .1,235.788

160,859 182,427
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J.B.MILETTE MANOR

(FpRMERLy': J.B. MIUEJTE LIMITED PARtNERSHIP)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

.FOR THE YEARS EN.D.EDJULY 31.2021 AND 2020

<*
2021 2020

iRENTAL.OPERATIONS

Income

Tenant Rental Income 5  206,568 $  209,157

Laundry Income 1,527 1,3.55

'Othcr,lnconte • 150"

Ihtcrcs! Inconric -".Unrestricted .15 21

Interest Ihc'ome - Restricted V  118 124

TctaLlncome. 208,228 210,807

Expens.es (See Schedule) :

Admihisrrative 53,312 60,452

Utilities. 61,643 • 59,251

Maintenance 48,666 66.329

Depreciation 31,755 31,397

General.Experises 34,420 32'.437 .

Total Expenses 229.796 249.866

CHANCE IN NET ASSETS (21,568) (39,059)

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 182.427 22l;486

NET ASSETS - END.OF YEAR S  160,859 $  182,427.
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J.B, MILETTE MANOR

CFORMERLY: J.B. MiLETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULES.OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31, 2021 AND 2020

EXPENSES: 2021 2020

/^dit)jnistrative

.Advert isihg s - S  2S

ManBgcmcnt.f.ccs 17.688 17,688
Sataries and Wages 27.751 .28,918
Fringe Benefits 3.582 8.636
Legal Expenses 20 446

Telephone 1,446 I,"352
.Other Administrative Expense 2,825. 3.387 .

XPTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE 53,312 60,452
.V

Electricity 33,466 32.400

Fuel 14,900 15,602
"Water and Sewer ' 11,-865 10,067
Qther Utility Expense 1,412 1,182 .

TOTAL UTILITY EXPENSE 61i643 .59,251

Maintenance

Cuslodial Supplies 1,115 689

Trash Removal 2,862 2,617
Snow Removal 7.97! 4,170

Elevator Repairs and Contract 6,238 ■  6,047
Repairs'(Materials) 26,098 4'8,763
Repairs (Contract) .4,382 4,04y

total Maintenance expense 48,666 . 66;329

Deprcciaii9n 31,755 ■3:1,397

General Exocnses

Real Estate Taxes 22,098. 20,974
Payroll Taxes 2,121 2,225
Workman's Compensation 1,120 827

Retirement Benefits 645 •

Insurance 8,436 8,4)1
total general expenses 34,420 32,437

total expenses s 229.796 $  249.866.
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J.B.'MILETTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: L6; MILETTE LiMITCD PaRT>JERSHIF)

•SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND'DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUr^ '

FOR THE YEAR ENDED.JULY J1.2021

SOURCE OF FUNDS

RcnulQpffat'ioM

Inconk

Tmai P«id Rent

HXP Re/u Subiid)'

Total Rcniil lf>com<

Sen'ke-likome

Imcrni Income

Commercial Income

Other likome

foul Rental Qpcntroni Reeeiai

Eyoeftiet •

Adminiitraiive

Uliliiics

Maimerainee

laicrcsi • NHHFA.Monpgc Note
loiercsi-'Oilter Noicj

Ccftcrtl

Other

Total Rental Ooeratfofls Dubunemenu

Oth Provided bv Rental Qnentiioni

AnwnraiionorMontnae

CaOf Provided bv Rental Ooenniofu

aOct Debt Service

OTHER RECEIPTS

DtktoManaacffl'em Atent

Trerurcf frbrh R^rittcd Caih Reurvci
and Etcret*-!

.OTHER DI$eURSE.MENTS.OR TIUNSFCrS

■Tramfen to Rwlrincd Caih Retervea
artd i-icroivi.

Pirrthttfc of Fixed Aaieli
Rdtavrntnt of OwiefAdwrteei
Oihtf Panrtenhio Exoentet
Trantfen lo-Tcrtarn Security Pcootit Aecoimt

i  116.697
19.171

1.327
13

52.144
SI.64J
49.J7I

24.420

2.B76

13.(>00

(21.

S  206.361

201.110

(191.271)
9.132

9.832

3.176

13:391

Net Increaie or tDttrenel in Pioicq'Account Caeh
Proiffi Accfluni Ciwh Ralance at Betinnint of Year
Praieci Accowni Cath nnlance ai End of Year

CQmaotitiof. af Proieci Accotini Cath
BitahceatEttd of Year

(1.190)
19.119
17.999-

17.999

Unrcairkled Reiwc (if aortticiblel
.Oecortiint Reterve
Opcrt'titti Reserve
Other Kcscr\-c

foiftl Petty Cath wtd Unrwtnctpd Rescrvei

Total Protect Aeeotinl Cash
at.gnddfYear 17.999
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J.B. NULfTTE MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.D. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

FbR THE y'eaR ENDED'JULV JI. 2020

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rffftil Qggfatlonr

tncQciK

TctMiii Paid Rcfii

HAP-Rent Subsidy

Total Rtniil Income

'  Income

InicTTSi income
Commercial Incww

pihet Income

Toul Rental Qpcfuiona Recciou

Exnemes

Adffliflisirative

Ulilitib
Maintenance

iRtercai • NHHFA Monftfc Note
Intcreai 'Piher tjciei
Ccneri)

Other

Total RrfnalOxftikmi bisbunemcnts

CatK PmVi^ b>- Rental Qocnnlom
AmontMtion of Monmec

Caih Pfovidctl bv Remil Qoenitioni

After DeN Service

DTKER RECEIPTS

PWIOMUfHtffhV'Irtlffll:.
OtvTKf Advances

Trtntfet fmm Renrkied Ctih Resfr%Ta

and Escrows

OTHER OlSBURSEMLVTS OR TRANSFERS

TransTcfa.to Renrided Cash Resefves

and.Escrows

Purchase of Fixed Assets

Reaaiioeni ofOt^-nei Adxinces

Other Pannctshm Expenses

Tntntfcts lo Tcnnm Security Dcoosii Acco.ini

S  .110.736

l.)S5

150

d2.a67

59^51

04.776

•32.437

217

112.474

15.600

15.955

S  209.157

2I0AI}

(211.931)

(t.24|)

112.691

101.555

Net'lnerease ortDcereaseVin Pidteq Account Cash

Pmteci Actotini Cash Balince at Beatnnina of Yeat

Pnitccl Account Cash Balance at End of Ycat

Cdmoosilion of Preieci'Acc'oum'Cash

ailance at End ofVettt

Ptnv C»l)

Unreslrkted Rescn-e (ifanoliCible3

Deceratint Rcsene
Ojpcraiini Reserve.
Other RcScr>-.c

2.S»

17.001

I9.tt9

i9.tt9.

total Pcii\- Cash and Uniwiricied Resen-ei

Total Pmieci-Accownl Cash

ai EMofVet»r . 19.189
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J.B. MILETTC MANOR

(FORMERLY: J.B. MILETTE LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH^RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2021

Description of Fund

Balance

Period

Deposits

Transfers

From

Beginning of Operations
Account

Interest

Ettmcd

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End of

Period

Restricted Accounts;

Tax Escrow

Replacement Reserve

Operating Reserve

S  6.S4S S

84.264

69,966

15,600

4  $

65

49

$  6,552

99,929

70,015

Total Restricted Cash

Reserves flod Escrows J 160,778 $ 15,600 $ 18 S

•  SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CASH CALCULATION

JULY 31. 2021

$  176,496

NET LOSS

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENT RESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Repair and Maintenance Expenses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH (DEFICIT)

$  (21.568)

31,755

15,600

$  (5.413)
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SHER.BURNE WOODS
(FORMERLY: SNHS:DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

statements of financial position

ASSETS

2021 2020
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash - Operaiions

Prepaid Expenses
S 80,916

■7.851
S 1.00,810

7,936
Total Current Assets 88,767 108,746

DEPOSITS HELD IN TRUST; FUNDED
Tenant Security Deposits .15,517 1.4,87 i'

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS AND FUNDED RESERVES
Repraccment R«erve

■0(>craiing Reserve"
Tax Escrow
Insurance-Escrow

180,572
67,945

6,707
-3,046

■  153,325
67,842

5,'927
3,480 =

Total Restricied'Dcposits and Funded Reserves 258,270 230;-574
RENTAL PROPERTY

Land

Building and Building Improvements
Total Rental Property
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Net Rental Property

211.000
907,200 .

1,118,200
.  75,935
1,042,265

211,000
907,200

1,118,200
52,355

1,065,845

TOTAL.ASSETS s 1,404,819 . S 1,420:036

UABIUT/ESAND i^ET ASSETS

CURRENT liabilities
Current Portion of Mortgage Loan Payable
Accounts Payable
Accrued Expenses

$ i 7,642
2,214

38

s 16,453
'370

Total Current Liabilities 19,894 16,823

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES
' Tenant Security Deposit.Liability 15,467 14,822 .

LONG-TERM LIXBILITIES
Due to Affiliate
Mortgage Loan Pa)'ablc, Net of Current Portion

94,862
851,614

133.513
869,248

Total Long-Tehn Liabilities 946,476 1,002,761

Total Liabiliiiies * 981,837 i;034.4,06.

NET.ASSETS WITHOUT DONQR RESTRICTIONS . 422,982 385,630

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS s 1,404,819 $ 1.420,036- ,
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FQRMERLY; SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHiP)
(PROJECtNo. HAP PSA 901-02-05)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

FOR The YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

•  • f 2021 2020

RENTAL OPERATIONS -

Income • '

Tenant Rcnial Income S  266.01.8 $  250,537
Laundry Income • 2.670 2,545
Other Income 1.290 ■ 1,084
Interest Income ♦ Unrc.siricted S3 68

Interest Income-.- Restricted- 370 2,320
Total Income 270,401 256,554

Expenses (See Schedule)

Administrative 29.W.7 44,581
Utilities 34,566 .33,892
Maintenance 89,326
Depreciation 23,580 23,580
Interest • NHHFA Mortgage Note '23,473 24,582
General Expenses 32,537 34,005

Total Expenses 233,0.49 228,883

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 37J52 27,671

NET ASSETS . BEGINNING OF YEAR 385,630 357,959

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR S  422.982 S  .3.85.630
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SHeRBURNE WOODS

(FQRME^Y: SNHS pEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECTED. HAP PBA 90I-02-05)

SCHEDULES OF RENTAL OPERATIONS EXPENSES

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JULY 31. 2021 AND 2020

EXPENSES: 202! ■i020

Advertising S  25 ■$ i50'
Management Fees 18,000 18,000
Salaries ond-Wages 1,909.' 16,085
Fringe Benefits 104 - 4,91 1
Legal Expenses 264 -

Telephone 2,372 2.299
Other Administrati ve Expense 6,873 . 3,T36

TOTAL administrative EXPENSE 29,567 44.581
Utilities

0«tricity 20,810 20,299
- Fuel 7,886 9,276

Water and Sewer 4PJ9 2,425
Other Utility Expense 1,531 1,892

TOTAL utility EXPENSE 34,566 33.892
Maintenance

Custodial Supplies 121
Trash Removal 2,789 3,170
Snpw Removal 28,761 21". 724
Repairs (Materials) 37,218 43,228
Repairs (Contract) 20,558 -

TOTAlj;MAINTENANCE EXPENSE 89,326 68.243.

Deore'ciation 23,580 ■23,580

Interest - NHHF'A MoriBace Note 23,473 . 24.582

pericral Expenses
Real Estate Taxes 26,926 26,673
Payroll Taxes 146 1.237
'Y(orlcmah's.'Compensation 105 788
Retirement benefits 144 276

Insurance 5,216 5,031
TOTAL GENERAL EXPENSES 32.537 34,005

TOTAL EXPENSES S  233,049 S: 228.883'
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?: ' SHERBURNE WQOOS
(FORMERLY: SMMS OEERriEtO ELOERLV HOUSING LIMITEDIpaRTTJERSHIPI

(PROJECT No. Hap PBA 901-02^5)

.SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS

PROJECT OPERATINC ACCOUhn*

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY Jl. 2021

SOURCE OF FUNDS

RcntilOpcfOtiwi

Intomc

Tcnsni Ptid Rcnl

HAP Rent Subtidv

Total Rcfiial Ineomt'

Scfviet Incofnc

iniercn loeome
Commefcial Income

Oiher!lnco(ne

Tmil Rcnul OpcnuroM Rweitm

E-KBCfUCt

Adminlsmiivc

Utiiiiio

MfiMcnance
iMcrcsi • NHHFa Mongajc Note
Imcrni >CRlHr Notes

-CeflCQl

.  OlSer

Total Rental Qpcrationt iXibuncmcnu

Cith Pmvidcil tn- RcfitSI Qocrationt

AmonimionofMoniaee

Cash Provided try Rental OocrBikwt

■ Aflcf Debt Scn rcc

S  I23.-Ii9

142.529

2.670

53

1.390

2'9.i|44

34.S66
S7.4I2

23.473

32.5J7

16.445

S  266.011

270.031

(207.302)

62.529

46.0t4

OTHER RECEIPTS

Doc to Mmagcmcnt Xaeni

(Vr>» Adyancfi

Tftfltfw from RcitfictcaCMh Rcim-ei

and EacrQ>vi_

OTHER DISBUR5iMF.NTS OR TRANSFERS

Tnwifen to Rwtrrtitd Cash Rwtfvcs .

and'Etctov^-s .

Purehiif of Fixed A»f»

Rtt»\-n>fnt of Owner Advar>e«

Othcf PanncfsKto E.xo<n«i

Tftnifcrt 10 Tcnnrn SccJflA- Oetwsic Account

32.642

59.961

38.651

-32.642

91.620

Net l/Kfcaic Of (OccreMc) In Preicci Aceoont Cmti

Pfokq Accouni Cath BalatKc ii Bcsinnirn of Veir

PfPteq AccQitni Cash Balance at End of Year

Cotnootiiion of Project AccoLm Ca^th

Balance s End of Year

Pch\' Cash ..

Unfcttrkirt Rcscn-e (ifawlicaMc3

0<KoratLB| Rcscn-e
OiKftiiiig Rfkrv-e
Other Reserve

Total Petty Cash tt>d Umesirlcted Rei<rx-«

Total Pfoiect Accouni Cmh

at End of Year

(19.194)

100.810

80.916

10.916

S  10.916
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SHERBURNE WOODS

(FOR'MERLY: SNHS.bEKRFIELD ELDERLY HOUSlf^ LtMITEO PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 90I-6j-OJ)

SCHEpULE OP RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS •
PROJECT OPERATING ACCOUNT

• FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2020

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Rcfiinl'Qocmitofti

incomt

Tcum Pilil RcM

;HAP Rcai Subsidy-

total RttiUl Iwconit
S<r>^ Income

iMertst'lncoinc
CommcrcUJ Income

:OUier Ineomc

TwI RcBalOpcnitlnfH Recetma

Exbeniei

Adniinblralivc.

Ultlhk's

>^iolenance

■Inierui • NHHFA Mortfi^c Note
Inicrcsi • Other Noics
Gcncnl
'outer

Touii Rerttal Qpcfiitoits Dwhuncmenti
CmH PrOYKlcti b\- Rcftnl Qncmiiofi<
Amorthaiwno'fMonMec
CMh PfQvklfU \K Rrniil OncraitQM

■ Aflcf Och Sen-tee

OTHER RECEIPTS

PtKioM^uKPTr'i Ann
0*vncrA<tvncci

Tmnirci from Rcitrictcd Cartt Rcten-ei
•and Etcrows

OtiiCH O'ISBURSKMF.NTS OR TRANSFERS
Tmnsfcn to Resincted Caeh ReMf%-cs

and Escfcm-s
PurcKaicofFLvcdAfim
Rcoa^-ment brOA-ncr Advncet

Other PiniKf^lp E.xr>cncc<.
Trifttfcri to Tenant Securt^^ Dcpoell Acceimt

S  113.921
I36.SI6

2.543
6t

1.014

46.39)
33.192
.72.113

.24.312

34.005

15.337

37.340

5t.lS4

(2.0>l)

ill

S  250.537

254.234

(2IO:9S5)
43.249

27:911

37.340

56.072

'Net IrKfritse nr (Occfcksel m Proiea 'Ac'covnc Carh
Prptcci Acconni Cath Balance at Beeinntna of Year

Pmkci AccQiiniCBTh Balance nt EndorYcat

Comrxwifkn of Prolccl Account CmK
Balanec at End of Year

:9.tM
91.630

lOO.tiO

100.110

Pc'^' Ca»h

Umwtrictcd Rcttrvc lif anplkable)
Decortlirtt Reserve
Operailnf Reserve
.Othcr.Rcservc

Total Pirttv Crtih and Unirstrktcd Reter\-es

ToinI Pfoicc'i AccminlCMh.

M fcrdtfrYnif s  !oo:iio
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SH6RBURNE WOODS
(FORMERLY: DEERFtELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)

(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901 .p2.05)

YEAR.T0-DATE:C0MPILATI0N OF OWNERS' FE_E/DISTRJBUTION

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDJULY 31, 2021

YEAR.

MAXIMUM allowable

DISTRiBUTION

DISTRIBUTION

RECEIVED BALANCE

12/31/2003

12/31/2004, S 1 13,850 S s .227,700

12/31/2005 S 1 13,850 s s 341,550

12/31/2006 s 113,850 ■■ s s '455.400

12/31/2007 s 113,850 s s 569,250

l2/3f/2008 s 1 13,850 s s 683.100

12/31/2009 s 113,850 s s 7.96.950

12/31/2010 s 1 13,850 s s 9)0.800-

12/31/201 1 s 1 13,850 s s j.024.650 .

.12/31/2012 s .1 13,850 s s .  1,138,500

12/31/2013 s 113,850 s .  s .! .252,350

.12/31/2014 s 113,850 s s :1,366.200

"■12/3.I/2015 X 113,850 s S  - 1,480,050

T2/30/2016 s 113,850 s s "1,593,900

12/30/20 i 7 S ■ 113,850 s s 1,707.750

■ 7/31/2018 . .s ^,413 s s 1.774,163

7/31/2019 s 113.850 s .r. S .i;888;OI3

7/30/2020 s 1 13,850 s s 2,66i,86'3

7/30/2021 s 1 13,850 s s .2.115.713
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SHERBURNE WOODS*

(FORMERLY: SNHS DEERFIELD ELDERLY HOUSING LIMITED PARTNERSHIP)
(PROJECT No. HAP PBA 901-02-05)

SCHEDULE OF RESTRICTED CASH RESERVES AND ESCROWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31, 2021

Descriotion of Fund

■ Balance

Beginning of
Period

Deoosits

Transfers

From

Operations

Account

Interest

Earned

Withdrawals

Transfers to

Operations

Account

Balance

End .of

Period

ResiHcted Accounts:

Insurance Escrow S  3.480 $  5.219
(

S  7 .S . 5-.660. S  3.046

Tjx Escrow 5.927 27.749 13 26,982 6.?07

Replacement Reserve 153,325 27,000 247 • 180,572,'

Operating Reserve 6'7,842 - 103. - 67,945

Total Restricted .Casb

Rcsei7« and Escrows S 230.574 $ 59,96.8 $ 370 $ 32.642 S 258,270

SCHEDULE OF SURPLUS CaSH CALCULATION

JULY 31. 202)

NET INCOME

ADD: DEPRECIATION

DEDUCT REQUIRED PRINCIPAL REPAYMENTS.

DEDUCT REQUIRED PAYMENTS TO

REPLACEMENt ftESERVES

ADD/DEDUCT NHHFA APPROVED ITEMS

Rcpair.and Mainicnancc-.Expcnses Reimbursed Through Replacement Reserves

SURPLUS CASH .(DEFICIT)

$  37,352

23,580

16,445

27,000

$  17,487
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Southern New HBnipshire Services, Inc.

Board of Directors

August 2022

Senator Lou D'Allesandro, Chairman

Dr. Kevin IVIoriarty, Vice Chairman

Thorrias Muilins, Esq., Treasurer

Orville Kerr, Secretafy
Representative Sherm Packard
Commissioner Toni Pappas

James Brown

Carrie Marshall Gross

Arina Hamel

Bonnie Henau|t

Wanda Kennerson

German Ortiz

Peter Ramsey



V- SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

The Community Action Partnership serving Hills'bo.ro.ugh and Rockingham Counties
Nl.aning.Address: PO Box 5CM0, Manchester, NH 03108

40'Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03013

Telephone; (603)668-8010 FAX: (603) 645-6734

llst of Key Administrative Personnel

August 2022

Title Narhe Ariniiail Salary Percentage Amount.

Executive Director Oonnaleeldzeau . 5201,874 0.00% 0

Deputy Director Ryan Clouthier 5129,511- 0.00% 0

Chief Financial Officer •James Chalsson 5145.200 0.00% 0

' . .

.



DONNALEE LdZEAU

ComfriurHty/CMc

Involvement- Current

•: NH Communi^ Action'Partnership
• HB4Cliff Effect Working Group,

Co<hair

• GoverhOr's Office' for Emergency
Relief and Recovery Stakeholders
Advisory Board, Chair

• Whole Fa'rnlly Approach to Jobs NH

Chapter, Co^hair '
• St. Joseph Hospital Board of

Directors, Quality Council Chair
• St. Mary's'Ba'nk Supervisory

Committee, Chair

• NH Healthy Families Boa'rd of

Oirertors

• Mary's House Advisory Board
• The Plus dimpahy
• NH Tomorrow Leadership Council
• CommunityCollege!Systemof.NH s

• American Council of Young Political

Leaders, Alumni'Member
• State .Workforce Innovation Board

Community/Civic

Involvem'eM- Post

Reaching Higher NH
• 'NH CenteVfbr Public Policies

Studies

• •Gbvernor'.s Judicial Selection

Commission

• 'Big Brothers Big Siste/s toard of
Director's, Past President

• .Greater Nashua-Oental Cortnection

BOD', FoundingMernber
• Great'American Downbwn;-

Founding Me.mber
«' Domestic ViolenceXoort^ih'ating'

G^uncil Nashua

• US Conference of Mayors
• No Labels

• Fix the Debt

• NHCenter'for Public Policy Studies'
• Greater'NashuaCKamberof

Commerce, pirector
• Greater Na'shua Workforce

Housing Coalition, Founding
Member

EXRERiEN.eEjSMSg;

Southern New Hampshire Services, .inc. (www:SNHSlorg)
Manchester, NH (Januaryr2016-Present).

Chief Executive Officer

• Development and oversight of-Comrnunl.ty Action Part'nershlp serving
NH's two largest,counties, Hillsborough a.nd Rockiftgha'm

.• Cooperation and engagement with local, state ,and federal 'agencies and
organisations on issues and programs that intersect with' the
Community Action Mission ' •

Work to fundamentally enhance the delivery of servfce to targeted
corhmunity to wrap services around clients and streamline the
application process by implementing the Whole Family. Appro,ach

City, of Nashua, New Hampshire (2008-2016) - Elected

Mayor

• Full time overall day to day managem'er>t and operations,of'Zrid.large'st
city in the state of NH With developmentand implemehlatibh of $245
million dollar (2016) annual budget

• Worked with elected boards including Board of Aldermen; Public
Works; Board of Education and others to prioritize and balance budget
requirernents and .the "needs of the community

• Chaired Board of Public Works and the Finance"Comrhlttee

• Successfully negotiated the City's purchase of the publicly traded
water cqrnpahy (Rennich'uck) after a prolonged case before the'NHPUC
and the NH Suprerne Court.

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (1^3v..20.p8) Manchestier, NH

Director of Program and Community Development
• Assessed the need for services throughout HHIsborpughXpunty..

through community outreach by developing partnership's,
collaborations and new initiatives with service providers and
businesses

• Negotiated purchases and contracts and presented projects before-
local boards, commissions and departments relative to ho.usi.n'g,
support services and economic development

• Designed and implemented strategies for develpping working
relationships with town and city officials, local service providers'and
appropriate private sectorofficialsjn order to project a positive irhage
of Southern New Hampshire Services, inc.

• Founded Mary's House 40 units of housing fo'r ho.mele'ss women a'nd
developed 219 units of Elderly-Housing '

• Pioneered initiatives for the Community Corrections and.Academ'y
Programs

• Expa.nded Head Start.Services an'd.developed the program and secured
.the site for Economic-Opportunity Center



Past Communlty/Civic

Involvement Continued

• Greater Nashua Asset Building
Coalition, Founding Member

.• New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation State Board,

Member •

• Eagle Board of Review

.education and Training

CCAP, Certified Community
Action Professional

• CCAP Proaor

• Rivier College, Nashua-.
Undergraduate' work In Political
Science

• Restaurant Management

Institute

• Mediation and Alternative

Dispute Resotutioh Training

• Leadership Institute, Aspen

.• Justice'of the Peace

NH State Representative, Hillsborough County, District 30

(1984 - 2d60)-Elected

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Rep'resentotiyes

(X99€-200b)

• Addressed constituent concerns

•. Assisted Non-ProHt organizations and local businesses with'governmental
concerns and steering legislation through the political process by working vylth
members and leadership in the NH House of Representatives and'the N^.
Senate and representatives of the Executive and Judicial branched

• Managed floor debates and supervised House Calendar content

• Responsible for functions of the House on behalf of or In the absence ,of the
S'j^ake'r

Committee Assignments: ,

• House Rules Committee, Vice Chairman

'• Hous.e.Legislative Administration Co'mmittee

• Joint Facilities Committee

• New Member Orientation, Chair

'V House Corrections and Criminal Justice Cornmittee. Vice Chairman

•; House Judiciary Committee

« Criminal Justice Sub-Committee, Chairman

• State and Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:

• Joint legislative Performance Audit and Oversight Co'mmittee

• Juvenile Justice Commission, Chairman

• Suprerne.Court Guardian Ad Litem Committee

•. Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee

• Work Force Opportunity Council

• Interbranch Criminal and Juvenile Justice Council

-• Subcomrnittee on Offenders,-Chalrman
•  Space and Prison Programming
•  Juveniles Subcommittee,Co-Chair

• National Conference of State Legislatures Law and Justice. Vice Chair

•' Council of State Covernments Intergovernmental Affairs, Corrections and:
Public Safety

City Streets Restaurant, (1986rX991l

Oty'Streets Diner, (2000 - 2003) Nashua, NH Co-Owner/Operator

• Operated dSO seat restaurant and banquet facility and effectively managed
financial accounts,.staff and licensing requirements
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OBJECTIVE

Seeking ajcadcnhtp rote which will allow me ihc opportunity lo utilize and build upon my knowledge and
paisiOp-fpr (he w6ty pcrfonncd by Community Action Agencies in ihc Stale of Nctv Hampshire; whjic at 'lhc
same lime being ihe suppon end str^gih for ihc Communities wc $cr>'c.

EXPERIENCE

Chief Operating OlTicerj Soiilhcrn.iN'etv Hampshire Sei^-iecs Inc.
FEB.20i8-RR£SENT . .
Serving as pen of the E.xccutive Management Tcam-and is responsible for providing inipmng leadership lo ihc
Souihem'Ncw Ham'pshiix Services (SNHS) senior managcmffli icam end developing a pcrfonhancc culiurt io
ensure ihe effcciivc management of a comprehensive array of over sixty programs. The Chief Opcntiing pfT'Ccr
will lie the various-component programs including: nutriiion; housing: energy; workforce dcvclopmcni; income
enhancement; educaiion; and elderly scryiccs lo.ihe agency, to each other, and to the general community, by
promoting and communicating the mission orCommunity Aaion. In conjunction with the Chief Executive
OfTicer and.Fiscfll Officer the Chicf Operuiing Officer provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively
involved with the dgciKy's high-jxrformancc senior Icadcrship'tcam in the development, impiemcniaticm. aiid
management of the program content as well as annual budgets. Responsible for. ensuring that services and ■
program's prdyidcd fulfill the agency's mission, and are in compliance with oil federal, stoic, funding, and'city
rtgulatiohs, cerxificaiioris. and licensing,requirements.

Energy und Mousing Operations Dircclor | Soulhcrn New Hampshire Services Iitc.
2016-"2018
R'esppftsiblc'foi: prayiding the various SNHS Energy and Cris.is programs. Inroortailon Tpchnolpgy. Housing end
Maintenance pix^fams 'with mission, vision and leadership. Responsible for the planning. lmpicrhcnta<ion;.arid
evaluation of all facets of ftscol and program management, effectiveness umilc providing general oversight for all
of the program's ddministmion and day>io*day management. Including budget management, grant wriiing and
puivhasirig. Also responsible ror;^mainiaining a working relationship with gox-cmmentai ofTlciels. local boards
and agencies in developing and managing the programs. In conjunction with the £.xecutivx'Oirccior and Fiscal
OITiccf this pp's.jtlqns provides the iiovordshiporSNHS by being »ci[vcly involved with the agency's High-
performance senior leadership team In the dcvxiopmcm. implementation', and management of program cbnieni ts
well OS annual budgets., Responsible for ensuring that services and programs provided fuinil the agency's
miuion and are in eompliaiKC with all federal, state, funding, city, ccrtificaiionst. end licensing rcquircmcriu.

Eiicrgy Director | Southern New Hnmpshirc Services Inc.
20I3.-2016

Responsible for cdpfdinaiion. implementation, budgeting. ove;rBll sup^isjon and managctnen,i'ofih'c'fucl;and
Elcciric-Assisuncc Programs, Crisis Programs. Wcaihcrizatlon Program. Lead Hazard Cdmrol Program.'and
YouihBtjild Program.for Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties. Ocvclopand Maintain relaiiooships wi^
redcrai, state arid local gnmiors. Intervene on bchil/of the Community Aciitw pcnaining to the Core Utility
Wcaihcrization'£ncrgy Elticici>cy Programs. Maintains a strong working relationships with OCA. NH licgai
yKssi'stancc, Office of Sirategic.lnitiaiKx. DOE. Libcny Utilities. Evcrsource. NHEC. Uniiil. NHHFa. NREL
Apprise arid b'lhcr iocal non^profii and private companics-in 'the industry. Panicipaics in multiple Healthy' Home
sirategic'planning commiiteo.

Wcialherizniion Director | Southern New Hnmpshirc Service's Inc.
2066^201'3 " '
Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and managctricnt of the'
Wctthcrizaiion, Lead Abatement, and YouihBuild Programs for Hillsborough end Rockingham Counties.
Pcvctppcd.'arid Maintain relationships with federal, state and local grahioT. Intervened on behalf,of the
Community Action Association during the rttcrgc of Libcny Energy and National Grid Gas along with filings
pcnaining lo the Core Energy Efficicricy Programs. Developed strong working relationships with OCA. NH



o

Lej^l Ajiimncc, Office of Energy ond Planning. DOE. Libcny Energy. Evcrsourcc. NHEQ Uniiil.'NHHFA,
NREU, Apprise and pJher local non-profu end privaic companies in the indusiry. Served on ihc Ocpanmcrit of
Eri®fgyjp«ial task- force designed'to implement a National Best Practices Manual for JTA/KSA for
Weatheriration Energy Auditor Genificaiion. Participated in a "One Touch" pilot cffoh which became a
statewide practice and'has received national recognition
Encrgy Audilor | Southern New Humpsliire Services Inc.
•2004 - 2006 .

Responsible for performing field cn^y audits of low income residential propcnies: record ihc data in written
and Mmpuicnied forinaw'io determine cost effceiivchess of conscrviajion metisurcs nccd«); generate work order
specs for the contractors. Conduct propCT follow through and field inspections to assure quality insiallalions and
client saiiiraciion.

Nehvdrk Annlvst | Cenuit)*
2004-2006

for monitoring jhc Genuity Dial, up network supporting AOL Domesik end lntemaiiona! subscribers
• including Japan. USA and Canada. Responsibilities include isolating and troubleshooting problems/outages and
configuration issues, on dinercnt'.typcsofCiico routers. Lucent APX's, MaX s. and Nortel CVX's.
Troublcshooiing eonsLsis of isolating problems through head to head tc«ing with diffcrcni Tclcp's. Also
«ponsiblc for creating, troubleshooting, and closing licktss in a group ticketing queue..Demonstrated strengths
.in (he.aretu of inierpiCTsqnil skills and'ncgotiation.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community Technical College
./P9f./PP5.- Dover Hi^ School
• Oiher. Wcaihcrixaiioh wi^ittcn end field ccrtincaiion. Department of Energy Quality Control Inspector
Certification,, multiple national and regional wcaibcrization bcsi practices trainings. Intro to .Cisco routers. Tl and
T3 design and troubleshooting training. ATM ond Frame Rclt>y network design training. LAN ond WAN"
.training. 0C3. pC48, and OC192 design and troubleshooting training. BPi Energy Analyst. Lead corttractor
abaicmcni Certification, RRP cenificaiion. OSHA 30 hour worker safety. DOE Lead Safe W«thcriMiiqn'
ccnifieatiott '' .

.SKILLS

Problem solving.
New Business Development

Social Media

Publjc Speaking
Dbib Ahelyiis/Anaiytical thinking
Siraicgie Planning
Operations Management
Contract Negotiations

Tnm and Relationship buildittg
Planning and forecasting

Budget and Rnancial management
Leadership

Community Aiscssmmi

Cornputer skids specific to job include.
TREAT. NEAT. OTTER. FAP/EAP
MicrosoflJfiS. PowerPoint. Outlook.
Word. Excel. Web. EmpowOR and CSST
and many others that can be beneficial.

ACTIViTVES/ACCOMPLISHIVIENTS.
•  Numerous,press artklo related to Wcaihcriiation including visits from the Assistant Sccretary'of Energy

.EITicichcy frdm the Dcpariment of Energy end Vice President Joe Biden.
•  Member of ihc City of Nashua Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Comrriiittx.*
•  Member of the City of Manchester Healthy Homes Strategic Plinnirig Committee.
•  Union Lq)dcr40uridCT4pOai».of20l3.
•  Vitro Prc'sijlcht of the Ncighbbr hclping Neighbor Board.

Member of the Energy Efficicney and Sustainable Energy Board.
•  Member.of-ihc Residential Ratepayers Advisory Board.



JAMES M.CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with .S.years of non-profit experience and over'20 years of bfpad.
experi.erice in manufacturing distribution, reorganizations, me'fgers and acquisitions, sales/operations
planning/fprecasting and establishing & monitoring perforrriance .melrl« in a manufacturing erivlironment.
Experienced In prjvate'and public cprporati.oris. Including 8 years in a private equity environment with a.^rong
focus on equity sponsor communication and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P&L, balance
sheet, cash flow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff leadership, training and development in a team
environment. Professional Experience:

Fiscal Officer In nonprofit' organization

•  ControUer in MFC &.Di5tributlon

•  Treasury, and Cash Flow M anagement

•  Financial '& .Capital Budgeting. Reporting & Control

•  Cost Accounting Manager

•  General Accounting Manager

•  Business'PeHorniance MetricEstablishment arid Measurement

PROFESSIONAL EXPEIRENCE

Southern New Hampshire Sehrfces, Manchester, NH s/2009-f>resent
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) Is a non-profit entity.dedicated to helping people help themselves,
SNHS accomplishes this througha yariety of programs offered at centers, offices, clinics, and Intake sights
located througHbut-Rockingham and Klilsborough counties. The agency also oversees 29.housing facilities
with approxImately'lOOO tenants. SNHS receives and a.dmi.nisters$S6 million in'program:fuhdsanhually with-
over 450 employees.

Chief Fiscal Officer 1/20X7 to Present
•' Ov'ersee financial and accounting compliance, maintaining controls and managing potential business

risks

• Manage.th'e annual budget process and analysis activities

•  Prepare presentation for Board of Directors meetings presentir)g the organizatioh's fihanclal.results

'• Develop and maintain banking relationships

• Manage the Annual Audit process

Senior'Accountont 5/2009-1/2017

Assl^ed Fiscal Director In overseeing all fiscal and financial activities including compliance .with federal, state,
and funding source requirements.as well as accordance wlth GAAP
•  Developed and implemented indirect cost calculation and interfaced with General Ledger
• Monitored and prepared monthly budget vs actual reporting; .recommended adjustments and forecast

spending

•  Created'specialized reports for the Individual grant's reporting requirements
•  designed allocation methods for properly billing shared Items to individual grants and progra.ms
•  Prep.arcd monthly agency program reviews for Fiscal Director's Board of Directors reyi.ew



James M. Chaisso'n

WOOD STRUaURES, (NG. Biddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSLlsa highly leveraged business owned by Roark Capital, a private equity fund, headquartered In Atlanta,
GA. WSl is a $70 mlllion.manufacturer of roof and floor trusses, wall panels and a.distributor of engineered
wood products. The compan/s products are sold into the residential and light commercial construction

markets

Controller 2006^/2009

Managied all aspects of accounting and reporting In a truss manufacturing plant as well as an engineered wood
products di^rlbution location that included 2 (ocations in Maine and 1 In Massachusetts.

•  Calculated and assisted In the man'a'gerhent of the company's covenants

• Worked closely with senior management during the sale process from the seller (Harbour Group) and
buyer (Roark Capital)

•  Identified cost drivers and implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cycle from 18
to S days

•  Conducte.d monthly reviews with the managers on financial results and measurement

• Oversaw the pdyroil function of ISO* employees

Accounting Morioaer 2001-2006

Recruited to company to restore financial controls and establish best practices concerning both general ledger
and cost accour^tlng processes. Responsible for overseeing the accounting of 2 locations In Maine and 1 In
Alabama.

•  Established the reporting protocols of the company used by both equity sponsors

•  Educated, motivated and developed a staff of 3 to succeed In their rolls of financial respohslbility
•  Identified and Irhplemented processes and procedures for all Intercompany sales, transfers,

consolidation and eliminations

•  Streamlined the payroll process that Included transferring to an external supplier (AOP), which reduced
cost by 4096

•  Conducted physicial inventories and defined their policies and procedure at all locations.

VISHAY SPRAOUE, SarifOfd, ME 1978-2001
Vishay Sprague is a division of Vlshay Intertechnology Inc. (NYSEL VSH) a global manufacturer of discrete
semiconductors and passive electronic components. The Sprague Division manufactures solid tantalum

capacitors with annual'sales of $200 million and 1,400 employees.

Plant Cost Accounting Manoaer 1997-2001

Division General Accounting Mgnoger 1995-1997

Division Ooerbtlon Accountant 1989-199S

Divisiori fixed Asse( Accountant 19B7-19>89

Master'Bnaineerina Technician 1984-1987

Lead Production Techrilcioh 1978-1984

EDUCATION

NASSON COLLEGER, Sprlngyale, ME

6.S: ln Bu^hess Administration


